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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the quarterly period ended July 1, 2011

Commission File Number: 001-09249

GRACO INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

41-0285640
(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

Minnesota
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55413
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(612) 623-6000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months, and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes
X
No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the
preceding 12 months (or such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).
Yes
X
No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large Accelerated Filer
X
Accelerated Filer
Non-accelerated Filer
Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes
No
X

60,850,000 shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock, $1.00 par value, were outstanding as of July 20, 2011.
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PART I

Item 1.
GRACO INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(Unaudited)
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
Net Sales

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

$ 234,663

$ 192,088

$ 452,342

102,217

90,168

195,499

165,594

132,446

101,920

256,843

191,215

10,354
39,582
24,255

9,472
32,647
20,592

20,285
77,065
44,169

18,946
61,807
38,547

58,255

39,209

115,324

71,915

1,732
324

1,041
(268)

2,348
324

56,199

38,436

112,652

69,901

18,100

13,600

37,300

24,500

$ 75,352

$

45,401

Cost of products sold
Gross Profit
Product development
Selling, marketing and distribution
General and administrative

Operating Earnings
Interest expense
Other expense, net

Earnings Before Income Taxes
Income taxes

$

356,809

2,121
(107)

Net Earnings

$

38,099

$

24,836

Basic Net Earnings per Common Share

$

0.63

$

0.41

$

1.25

$

0.75

Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share

$

0.61

$

0.41

$

1.22

$

0.74

Cash Dividends Declared per Common Share

$

0.21

$

0.20

$

0.42

$

0.40

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GRACO INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

July 1,
2011
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $5,700 and $5,600
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets
Total current assets

$

Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, net

Goodwill
Other Intangible Assets, net
Deferred Income Taxes
Other Assets
Total Assets

$

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Notes payable to banks
Trade accounts payable
Salaries and incentives
Dividends payable
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

$

119,267
159,807
113,494
20,952
3,616
417,136

Dec 31,
2010
$

9,591
124,593
91,620
18,647
7,957
252,408

345,871
(212,933)
132,938

344,854
(210,669)
134,185

93,400
23,250
15,550
9,995
692,269

91,740
28,338
14,696
9,107
530,474

13,935
27,418
24,350
12,751
42,832
121,286

$

$

8,183
19,669
34,907
12,610
44,385
119,754

Long-term Debt
Retirement Benefits and Deferred Compensation

150,000
78,246

70,255
76,351

Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock
Additional paid-in-capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total shareholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

60,816
238,016
94,305
(50,400)
342,737
692,269

60,048
212,073
44,436
(52,443)
264,114
530,474

$

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GRACO INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited) (In thousands)

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Share-based compensation
Excess tax benefit related to share-based payment arrangements
Change in
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Trade accounts payable
Salaries and incentives
Retirement benefits and deferred compensation
Other accrued liabilities
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Property, plant and equipment additions
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of business
Investment in life insurance
Capitalized software and other intangible asset additions
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Borrowings on short-term lines of credit
Payments on short-term lines of credit
Borrowings on long-term notes and line of credit
Payments on long-term line of credit
Payments of debt issuance costs
Excess tax benefit related to share-based payment arrangements
Common stock issued
Common stock repurchased
Cash dividends paid
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year
End of period
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

75,352

$

17,542
(4,223)
6,287
(1,700)

17,319
(5,247)
5,127
(900)

(32,590)
(21,446)
7,642
(11,633)
4,040
62
4,558
43,891

(40,392)
(17,742)
9,552
7,624
4,996
1,287
1,020
28,045

(9,999)
188
(2,139)

(5,932)
123

-

(1,499)
(193)
(7,501)

-

(485)
(12,435)
13,550
(8,328)
252,175
(172,430)
(1,131)
1,700
18,705

6,410
(3,406)
45,800
(52,060)
-

900
8,815
(3,462)
(24,122)
(21,125)
47
(534)

(25,342)
78,899
(679)
109,676

$

45,401

9,591
119,267

$

5,412
4,878
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GRACO INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
1.

The consolidated balance sheet of Graco Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company) as of July 1, 2011 and the related
statements of earnings for the thirteen and twenty-six weeks ended July 1, 2011 and June 25, 2010, and cash
flows for the twenty-six weeks ended July 1, 2011 and June 25, 2010 have been prepared by the Company and
have not been audited.
In the opinion of management, these consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments (consisting of only
normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial position of Graco Inc. and Subsidiaries
as of July 1, 2011, and the results of operations and cash flows for all periods presented.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company changed its cash flow presentation of notes payable activity, for all
periods presented, to separately disclose borrowings and payments. The Company also changed the cash flow
presentation of activity on the swingline portion of its long-term revolving credit arrangement by changing the
method it uses to accumulate borrowing and payment amounts. In prior periods, such activity was disclosed on
a net basis. The effect of this change was to increase both borrowings and payments on long-term line of credit
by $46 million in the first half of 2010. These changes had no impact on net cash used in financing activities.
Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted. Therefore, these statements
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s 2010
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results that will be realized for the
full fiscal year.
6
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2.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per
share amounts):
Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
Net earnings available to common
shareholders

$

38,099

$

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

24,836

$

75,352

$

45,401

Weighted average shares outstanding for
basic earnings per share

60,721

60,597

60,496

60,402

Dilutive effect of stock options computed
using the treasury stock method and
the average market price

1,349

587

1,219

546

Weighted average shares outstanding for
diluted earnings per share

62,070

61,184

61,715

60,948

Basic earnings per share

$

0.63

$

0.41

$

1.25

$

0.75

Diluted earnings per share

$

0.61

$

0.41

$

1.22

$

0.74

Stock options to purchase 438,000 and 2,987,000 shares were not included in the 2011 and 2010
computations of diluted earnings per share, respectively, because they would have been anti-dilutive.
3.

Information on option shares outstanding and option activity for the twenty-six weeks ended July 1, 2011 is
shown below (in thousands, except per share amounts):
Weighted
Average

Option
Shares

5,509
569
(425)
(33)
5,620

Outstanding, December 31, 2010
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
Outstanding, July 1, 2011

Exercise
Price

$

$

30.42
43.15
26.00
35.18
32.01

Weighted
Average

Options
Exercisable

Exercise
Price

2,980

$

31.99

3,304

$

32.01

The Company recognized year-to-date share-based compensation of $6.3 million in 2011 and $5.1 million in
2010. As of July 1, 2011, there was $11.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested options,
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.2 years.
7
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The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions and results:

Expected life in years
Interest rate
Volatility
Dividend yield
Weighted average fair value per share

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
6.5
6.0
2.8 %
2.7 %
33.7 %
34.0 %
2.0 %
3.0 %
$
13.35
$
7.38

Under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Company issued 313,000 shares in 2011 and
436,000 shares in 2010. The fair value of the employees’ purchase rights under this Plan was estimated on the
date of grant. The benefit of the 15 percent discount from the lesser of the fair market value per common share
on the first day and the last day of the plan year was added to the fair value of the employees’ purchase rights
determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions and results:
Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
1.0
1.0
0.3 %
0.3 %
27.8 %
42.8 %
2.1 %
2.9 %
$ 10.05
$ 8.48

Expected life in years
Interest rate
Volatility
Dividend yield
Weighted average fair value per share
8
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4.

The components of net periodic benefit cost for retirement benefit plans were as follows (in thousands):
Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Pension Benefits
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on assets
Amortization and other
Net periodic benefit cost

$

$

Postretirement Medical
Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization
Net periodic benefit cost
5.

1,232 $
3,370
(4,000)
1,465
2,067 $

894 $
3,138
(3,325)
1,548
2,255 $

2,465
6,740
(8,000)
2,946
4,151

$

$

150 $
295
(95)
350 $

250
650

$

$

125
325

$

450

-

$

$

-

900

$

2,135
6,415
(6,800)
3,052
4,802
275
620
(95)
800

Total comprehensive income was as follows (in thousands):

Net earnings
Pension and postretirement medical
liability adjustment
Gain (loss) on interest rate hedge
contracts
Income taxes

$

Comprehensive income

$

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
38,099 $
24,836

1,429
-

(537)
38,991
9

$

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
$
75,352 $
45,401

1,491

2,792

2,959

933
(896)

454
(1,203)

1,638
(1,701)

26,364

$

77,395

$

48,297
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Components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were (in thousands):

July 1,
2011
Pension and postretirement medical liability
adjustment
Gain (loss) on interest rate hedge contracts
Cumulative translation adjustment

$

(49,577)

$

(823)

$

Total

6.

Dec 31,
2010

(50,400)

$

(51,334)
(286)
(823)
(52,443)

The Company has three reportable segments: Industrial, Contractor and Lubrication. Sales and operating
earnings by segment for the thirteen and twenty-six weeks ended July 1, 2011 and June 25, 2010 were as
follows (in thousands):

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
Net Sales
Industrial
Contractor
Lubrication
Total
Operating Earnings
Industrial
Contractor
Lubrication
Unallocated corporate (expense)
Total

$
$

129,304
80,702
24,657
234,663

$

45,339
16,424
4,045
(7,553)
58,255

$

$

$

$

$

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

100,461
73,782
17,845
192,088

$

29,565
13,203
1,868
(5,427)
39,209

$

$

$

$

197,253
124,579
34,977
356,809

90,364 $
27,539
9,272
(11,851)
115,324 $

60,039
18,086
3,575
(9,785)
71,915

252,134
150,907
49,301
452,342

$

Unallocated corporate includes $3 million of expense in 2011 related to the pending acquisition of ITW’s
finishing businesses.

Assets by segment were as follows (in thousands):

July 1,
2011
$ 302,554
159,373
88,130
142,212
$ 692,269

Industrial
Contractor
Lubrication
Unallocated corporate
Total
10

Dec 31,
2010
$ 270,160
134,938
81,746
43,630
$ 530,474
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7.

Major components of inventories were as follows (in thousands):

Finished products and components
Products and components in various stages of
completion
Raw materials and purchased components

July 1,
2011
$
56,934

Dec 31,
2010
$
48,670

37,636
55,928
150,498
(37,004)
113,494

31,275
46,693
126,638
(35,018)
91,620

Reduction to LIFO cost

$

Total

8.

$

Information related to other intangible assets follows (dollars in thousands):
Estimated
Life

Original
Cost

(years)

July 1, 2011
Customer relationships
Patents, proprietary technology and product
documentation
Trademarks, trade names and other

$

2-8

3 -10
2-3

Not Subject to Amortization:
Brand names
Total

December 31, 2010
Customer relationships
Patents, proprietary technology and product
documentation
Trademarks, trade names and other

3-8

$

$

(27,716)

(181)

Book
Value
$

13,028

14,752
6,970

(9,688)
(4,905)

(87)
-

4,977
2,065

62,647

(42,309)

(268)

20,070

3,180

-

-

3,180

65,827

$

(42,309)

$

(268)

$

23,250

$

41,075

$

(24,840)

$

(181)

$

16,054

Not Subject to Amortization:
Brand names

$
11

Foreign
Currency
Translation

$

3 - 10
3 - 10

Total

40,925

Accumulated
Amortization

19,902
8,154

(13,956)
(4,909)

(87)
-

5,859
3,245

69,131

(43,705)

(268)

25,158

3,180

-

-

3,180

72,311

$

(43,705)

$

(268)

$

28,338
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Amortization of intangibles was $2.9 million in the second quarter of 2011 and $5.7 million year-to-date. Estimated
annual amortization expense is as follows: $10.9 million in 2011, $9.0 million in 2012, $4.3 million in 2013, $0.9
million in 2014, $0.5 million in 2015 and $0.2 million thereafter.
9.

Components of other current liabilities were (in thousands):

Accrued self-insurance retentions
Accrued warranty and service liabilities
Accrued trade promotions
Payable for employee stock purchases
Income taxes payable
Other
Total other current liabilities

$

$

July 1,
2011
6,900
6,859
4,150
3,129
2,220
19,574
42,832

Dec 31,
2010
$
6,675
6,862
5,947
5,655
733
18,513
$
44,385

A liability is established for estimated future warranty and service claims that relate to current and prior period
sales. The Company estimates warranty costs based on historical claim experience and other factors including
evaluating specific product warranty issues. Following is a summary of activity in accrued warranty and service
liabilities (in thousands):

Balance, beginning of year
Charged to expense
Margin on parts sales reversed
Reductions for claims settled
Balance, end of period

10.

Twenty-six
Weeks Ended
July 1,
2011
$
6,862
2,385
2,058
(4,446)
$
6,859

Year Ended
Dec 31,
2010

$

$

7,437
3,484
3,412
(7,471)
6,862

The Company accounts for all derivatives, including those embedded in other contracts, as either assets or
liabilities and measures those financial instruments at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of
derivatives depends on their intended use and designation.
As part of its risk management program, the Company may periodically use forward exchange contracts and
interest rate swaps to manage known market exposures. Terms of derivative instruments are structured to match
the terms of the risk being managed and are generally held to maturity. The Company does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. All other contracts that contain provisions meeting the
definition of a derivative also meet the requirements of, and have been designated as, normal purchases or
sales. The Company’s policy is to not enter into contracts with terms that cannot be designated as normal
purchases or sales.
12
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The Company periodically evaluates its monetary asset and liability positions denominated in foreign currencies.
The Company enters into forward contracts or options, or borrows in various currencies, in order to hedge its
net monetary positions. These instruments are recorded at current market values and the gains and losses are
included in other expense (income), net. The notional amount of contracts outstanding as of July 1, 2011, totaled
$23 million. The Company believes it uses strong financial counterparts in these transactions and that the
resulting credit risk under these hedging strategies is not significant.

The Company uses significant other observable inputs to value the derivative instruments used to hedge interest
rate volatility and net monetary positions, including reference to market prices and financial models that
incorporate relevant market assumptions. The fair market value and balance sheet classification of such
instruments follows (in thousands):

July 1,
2011

Balance Sheet

Classification
Gain (loss) on interest rate
hedge contracts

Other current liabilities

Gain (loss) on foreign
currency forward contracts
Gains
Losses
Other current liabilities

Net

11.

Dec 31,
2010

$

-

$

(454)

$

41
(344)
(303)

$

92
(284)
(192)

$

$

In March 2011, the Company entered into a note agreement and sold $150 million of unsecured notes (series A
and B) in a private placement. Proceeds were used to repay revolving line of credit borrowings and invested in
cash equivalents. In July 2011, the Company sold an additional $150 million in unsecured notes (series C and
D). Proceeds were invested in cash equivalents.

Interest rates and maturity dates on the four series of notes are as follows (dollars in millions):
Series
A
B
C
D

Amount
$
75
$
75
$
75
$
75

Rate
4.00 %
5.01 %
4.88 %
5.35 %

Maturity
March 2018
March 2023
January 2020
July 2026

The note agreement requires the Company to maintain certain financial ratios as to cash flow leverage and
interest coverage.

The Company is in compliance with all financial covenants of its debt agreements.

The estimated fair value of the notes sold in March 2011 is not significantly different from the $150 million
carrying amount as of July 1, 2011.
13
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12.

In April 2011, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to purchase the finishing businesses of Illinois
Tool Works Inc. (ITW) in a $650 million cash transaction. Closing on the purchase is subject to regulatory
reviews and other customary closing conditions. The Company is cooperating with the Federal Trade
Commission to obtain clearance to close on the transaction. The Company plans to finance the acquisition
through a new committed $450 million revolving credit facility that will become effective upon closing of the
purchase, and funds available under the long-term notes referenced above.

Also in April 2011, the Company acquired the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Eccentric Pumps, LLC
(“Eccentric”) for approximately $2.1 million cash. Eccentric was engaged in the business of designing and
selling peristaltic hose pumps for metering, dosing and transferring fluids. The Company expects to employ the
Eccentric assets to expand and complement its Industrial segment business. The purchase price was allocated
based on estimated fair values, including $1.7 million of goodwill and $0.7 million of other identifiable intangible
assets.
14
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GRACO INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 2.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview
The Company designs, manufactures and markets systems and equipment to move, measure, control, dispense and
spray fluid materials. Management classifies the Company’s business into three reportable segments: Industrial,
Contractor and Lubrication. Key strategies include developing and marketing new products, expanding distribution
globally, opening new markets with technology and channel expansion and completing strategic acquisitions.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis reviews significant factors affecting the Company’s results of
operations and financial condition. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Results of Operations
Net sales, net earnings and earnings per share were as follows (in millions except per share amounts and
percentages):
Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
%
2011
2010
Change

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
%
2011
2010
Change
Net Sales
Net Earnings
Diluted Net Earnings per Common
Share

$
$

234.7
38.1

$
$

192.1
24.8

22%
53%

$
$

452.3
75.4

$
$

356.8
45.4

27%
66%

$

0.61

$

0.41

49%

$

1.22

$

0.74

65%

All segments and geographic regions had strong percentage revenue growth over last year for the quarter and year-todate. Volume increases continued to drive improvement in net earnings. Changes in translation rates increased net
earnings for the quarter by approximately $4 million and increased year-to-date earnings by approximately $5 million.
15
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Consolidated Results
Sales by geographic area were as follows (in millions):
Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Americas 1
Europe2
Asia Pacific
Consolidated
1
2

$
$

125.7
58.0
51.0
234.7

$
$

110.2
44.0
37.9
192.1

$
$

241.3
111.3
99.7
452.3

$
$

196.9
85.8
74.1
356.8

North and South America, including the U.S.
Europe, Africa and Middle East

Sales for the quarter increased 22 percent (18 percent at consistent translation rates), including increases of 14
percent in the Americas, 32 percent in Europe (21 percent at consistent translation rates) and 34 percent in Asia
Pacific (27 percent at consistent translation rates). Year-to-date sales increased 27 percent (24 percent at consistent
translation rates), with increases of 23 percent in the Americas, 30 percent in Europe (24 percent at consistent
translation rates) and 35 percent in Asia Pacific (29 percent at consistent translation rates).

Gross profit margin, expressed as a percentage of sales, was 56 1/2 percent for the quarter, up 3 percentage points
from the second quarter last year. The year-to-date gross margin rate was 57 percent, also 3 percentage points higher
than the rate for the comparable period last year. The favorable effects of higher volume, translation, and selling price
increases were offset somewhat by higher material costs for both the quarter and the year-to-date.
Total operating expenses increased $11 million for the quarter and $22 million year-to-date. Selling, marketing and
distribution expenses increased $7 million for the quarter and $15 million year-to-date, from translation, headcount
increases (mostly in Europe and Asia Pacific) and higher marketing and promotion expenses (mainly in Contractor
segment). General and administrative expense for the quarter increased $4 million, including $3 million related to the
pending acquisition of ITW’s finishing businesses.

The effective income tax rate of 32 percent for the quarter and 33 percent for the year-to-date is lower than the 35
percent rate for both the quarter and year-to-date periods last year. The decrease is mainly due to the federal R&D
credit included in the 2011 rate (the federal R&D credit was not available in 2010 until the fourth quarter).
16
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Segment Results
Certain measurements of segment operations compared to last year are summarized below:
Industrial

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Net sales (in millions)
Americas
Europe
Asia Pacific

$
$

Total

$

55.9
36.1
37.3
129.3

Operating earnings as a percentage of
net sales

$

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

$

45.5
27.1
27.9
100.5

35 %

$

29 %

108.8
70.5
72.8
252.1

$
$

36 %

87.4
55.0
54.9
197.3

30 %

Industrial segment sales for the quarter increased 23 percent in the Americas, 33 percent in Europe (22 percent at
consistent translation rates) and 34 percent in Asia Pacific (28 percent at consistent translation rates). Year-to-date
sales increased 25 percent in the Americas, 28 percent in Europe (23 percent at consistent translation rates) and 33
percent in Asia Pacific (28 percent at consistent translation rates).
Higher volume and expense leverage contributed to the improvement in operating earnings as a percentage of sales.

Contractor
Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Net sales (in millions)
Americas
Europe
Asia Pacific
Total

Operating earnings as a
percentage of net sales

$
$

52.5
19.6
8.6
80.7

$

51.6
15.2
7.0
73.8

$

20 %

18 %

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

$
$

97.4
36.3
17.2
150.9

18 %

$
$

83.5
27.8
13.3
124.6

15 %

Contractor segment sales for the quarter increased 2 percent in the Americas, 29 percent in Europe (17 percent at
consistent translation rates) and 23 percent in Asia Pacific (13 percent at consistent translation rates). Year-to-date
sales increased 17 percent in the Americas, 30 percent in Europe (24 percent at consistent translation rates) and 30
percent in Asia Pacific (22 percent at consistent translation rates).
Higher volume and expense leverage contributed to the improvement in operating earnings as a percentage of sales.
High product development expenses affected the operating margin rate
17
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in 2010, and increased marketing, including product launch and promotion expenses, moderated the improvement in
2011.

Lubrication
Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Net sales (in millions)
Americas
Europe
Asia Pacific
Total

Operating earnings as
a percentage of net
sales

$
$

17.2
2.3
5.2
24.7

16 %

$
$

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

13.2
1.5
3.1
17.8

10 %

$
$

35.0
4.5
9.8
49.3

19 %

$
$

26.0
2.9
6.0
34.9

10 %

Lubrication segment sales for the quarter increased 30 percent in the Americas, 55 percent in Europe and 64 percent
in Asia Pacific. Year-to-date sales increased 34 percent in the Americas, 55 percent in Europe and 63 percent in Asia
Pacific.
Higher volume and expense leverage contributed to the improvement in operating earnings as a percentage of sales.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Net cash provided by operating activities was $44 million in 2011 and $28 million in 2010. The effect of higher net
earnings was offset by higher 2010 incentive and bonus payments made in the first quarter of 2011.
Since the end of 2010, inventories increased by $22 million to meet higher demand, and accounts receivable increased
by $35 million due to higher sales levels.

At July 1, 2011, the Company had various lines of credit totaling $272 million, of which $261 million was unused.
In March 2011, the Company entered into a note agreement and sold $150 million of unsecured notes in a private
placement. One series of notes totaling $75 million bears interest at 4.0 percent and matures in 2018. Another series
of notes totaling $75 million bears interest at 5.01 percent and matures in 2023. Under terms of the agreement, the
Company sold an additional $150 million of unsecured notes on July 26, 2011. One series of notes issued in July
totaling $75 million bears interest at 4.88 percent and matures in 2020. Another series of notes issued in July totaling
$75 million bears interest at 5.35 percent and matures in 2026. Proceeds were used to repay revolving line of credit
borrowings and invested in cash equivalents.
Under terms of the note agreement, interest is payable quarterly. The Company is required to maintain a cash flow
leverage ratio of not more than 3.25 to 1.00 and an interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.00 to 1.00. If a significant
acquisition is consummated, the agreement allows, for a one-year period, for a cash flow leverage ratio of 3.75 to 1.00
and an interest coverage ratio of not less than 2.50 to 1.00. The note agreement contains covenants typical of
18

Table of Contents

unsecured credit facilities, including customary default provisions. If an event of default occurs, all outstanding
obligations may become immediately due and payable. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenants at
July 1, 2011.

In April 2011, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to purchase the finishing business operations of Illinois
Tool Works Inc. (ITW) in a $650 million cash transaction. Closing on the purchase is subject to regulatory reviews
and other customary closing conditions. On July 5, 2011, the Company received a request for additional information
from the Federal Trade Commission. The issuance of this second request extends the waiting period to close the
acquisition to thirty days after the Company has substantially complied with the request. The Company is in the
process of responding to the second request.
The Company plans to finance the acquisition with borrowings under the long-term notes referenced above and with
borrowings under a new revolving credit facility that will become effective upon closing of the purchase. In May 2011,
the Company entered into a credit agreement providing the Company access to a $450 million unsecured revolving
credit facility until May 2016. The Company may not obtain any loans under the credit agreement until certain
conditions are met, including the closing of the acquisition of ITW’s finishing businesses and the Company receiving
not less than $75 million in proceeds from the issuance of additional long-term notes.
Internally generated funds and unused financing sources are expected to provide the Company with the flexibility to
meet its liquidity needs in 2011.

Outlook
On a global basis, incoming order rates are stable and management expects market conditions in the second half of
2011 to be generally favorable, with the exception of the U.S. housing and commercial construction markets, which
continue to be challenging. Percentage growth trends in the second half of 2011 are expected to be lower as
comparisons to prior year become more difficult.

The pending acquisition of the ITW finishing businesses would advance all of the Company’s stated core growth
strategies, including new products and technology, geographic expansion, and new markets.
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SAFE HARBOR CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
A forward-looking statement is any statement made in this report and other reports that the Company files periodically
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or in press or earnings releases, analyst briefings and conference
calls, which reflects the Company’s current thinking on the acquisition of the finishing businesses of ITW, market
trends and the Company’s future financial performance at the time they are made. All forecasts and projections are
forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to update these statements in light of new
information or future events.

The Company desires to take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995 by making cautionary statements concerning any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the
Company. The Company cannot give any assurance that the results forecasted in any forward-looking statement will
actually be achieved. Future results could differ materially from those expressed, due to the impact of changes in
various factors. These risk factors include, but are not limited to: economic conditions in the United States and other
major world economies, currency fluctuations, political instability, changes in laws and regulations, and changes in
product demand. In addition, risk factors related to the Company’s pending acquisition of the ITW finishing businesses
include: whether and when the required regulatory approvals will be obtained, whether and when the closing
conditions will be satisfied and whether and when the transaction will close, the ability to close on committed financing
on satisfactory terms, the amount of debt that the Company will incur to complete the transaction, completion of
purchase price valuation for acquired assets, whether and when the Company will be able to realize the expected
financial results and accretive effect of the transaction, how customers, competitors, suppliers and employees will
react to the transaction, and economic changes in global markets. Please refer to Item 1A of, and Exhibit 99 to, the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2010 and Item 1A of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a
more comprehensive discussion of these and other risk factors.
Investors should realize that factors other than those identified above and in Item 1A and Exhibit 99 might prove
important to the Company’s future results. It is not possible for management to identify each and every factor that may
have an impact on the Company’s operations in the future as new factors can develop from time to time.
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Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

There have been no material changes related to market risk from the disclosures made in the Company’s 2010 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
Item 4.

Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures
As of the end of the fiscal quarter covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures. This evaluation was done under the supervision
and with the participation of the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Vice
President and Controller, and the Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Based upon that evaluation, they
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Changes in internal controls
During the quarter, there was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that has materially
affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II
Item 1A.

OTHER INFORMATION
Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the Company’s risk factors from those disclosed in the Company’s 2010
Annual Report on Form 10-K, except for the addition of the risk factor described below:

Pending Acquisition - Our pending acquisition of the finishing business operations of Illinois Tool Works
Inc. is subject to regulatory approvals and the expected benefits from the acquisition may not be fully
realized.
We have entered into a definitive agreement to purchase the finishing business of Illinois Tools Works Inc. (ITW) in a
$650 million cash transaction. We cannot predict whether or when the required regulatory approvals will be obtained
or if the closing conditions will be satisfied. If we terminate the agreement before April 1, 2012 due to failure to obtain
regulatory approval, we will be required to pay a $20 million termination fee. After the transaction closes, significant
changes to our financial condition as a result of global economic changes or difficulties in the integration of the newly
acquired businesses may affect our ability to obtain the expected benefits from the transaction or to satisfy the
financial covenants included in the terms of the financing arrangements.

Item 2.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
On September 18, 2009, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to purchase up to 6,000,000 shares of its
outstanding common stock, primarily through open-market transactions. The authorization expires on September 30,
2012.

In addition to shares purchased under the Board authorizations, the Company purchases shares of common stock
held by employees who wish to tender owned shares to satisfy the exercise price or tax withholding on option
exercises.
No shares were purchased in the second quarter of 2011. As of July 1, 2011, there were 5,179,638 shares that may
yet be purchased under the Board authorization.
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Item 6.
2.1

Exhibits
Asset Purchase Agreement, dated April 14, 2011, by and among Graco Inc., Graco Holdings Inc.,
Graco Minnesota Inc., Illinois Tool Works Inc. and ITW Finishing LLC (excluding schedules and
exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally to the Securities and Exchange
Commission upon request) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Report on
Form 8-K filed April 15, 2011).

10.1

Credit Agreement, dated May 23, 2011, among Graco Inc., the borrowing subsidiaries from time to
time party thereto, the banks from time to time party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as
administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8K filed May 26, 2011).

10.2

Amendment No. 1 to Note Agreement, dated May 23, 2011.

31.1

Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

32

Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section
1350 of Title 18, U.S.C.

99.1

Press Release, Reporting Second Quarter Earnings, dated July 27, 2011.

101

Interactive Data File.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

GRACO INC.

Date:

July 27, 2011

By:

/s/ Patrick J. McHale
Patrick J. McHale
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date:

July 27, 2011

By:

/s/ James A. Graner
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date:

July 27, 2011

By:

/s/ Caroline M. Chambers
Caroline M. Chambers
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Exhibit 10.2
May 23, 2011

Graco Inc.

88 11 th Avenue NE
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55413
Re:

Amendment No. 1 to Note Agreement

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to that certain Note Agreement, dated as of March 11, 2011 (the “Note Agreement” ), between Graco Inc., a
Minnesota corporation (the “Company” ), on the one hand, and The Prudential Insurance Company of America, Gibraltar Life
Insurance Co., Ltd., The Prudential Life Insurance Company, Ltd., Forethought Life Insurance Company, RGA Reinsurance Company,
MTL Insurance Company and Zurich American Insurance Company, on the other hand. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise
defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Note Agreement.

The Company has requested certain amendments to the Note Agreement set forth below. Subject to the terms and conditions
hereof, the undersigned holders of the Notes are willing to agree to such request. Accordingly, and in accordance with the provisions of
paragraph 11C of the Note Agreement, the parties hereto agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Amendments to the Note Agreement . Effective upon the Effective Date (as defined in Section 2 below), the
parties hereto agree that the Note Agreement is amended as follows:
1.1.

The reference to “90” in clause (ii) of paragraph 5A of the Note Agreement is amended to be “75”.

1.2.

Paragraph 5M of the Note Agreement is added to the Note Agreement to read as follows:

“5M. Pledge Agreements.

The Company covenants that if at any time the Company or any Domestic Subsidiary owning
stock or Ownership Interests of a Material Foreign Subsidiary is required to secure the obligations under a Primary Credit Facility
with a security interest in such stock or Ownership Interest of such Material Foreign Subsidiary, the Company will promptly

execute, or cause such Domestic Subsidiary owning such stock or Ownership Interests of a Material Foreign Subsidiary to
promptly execute, a pledge agreement to pledge to the Collateral Agent for the benefit of the holders of the Notes and other
secured parties pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement with respect to the lesser of (i) 65% of the outstanding stock or other
Ownership Interests of a Material Foreign Subsidiary, or (ii) all of the stock or other Ownership Interests of such Material
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Foreign Subsidiary owned by the Company or such Domestic Subsidiary at any time. The Company further agrees to deliver to
the Collateral Agent all such pledge agreements, to the extent necessary to grant the Collateral Agent a security interest in 65%
of the outstanding stock or other Ownership Interests of each first-tier Material Foreign Subsidiary, together (to the extent
available and applicable) with appropriate corporate resolutions and other documentation (including the certificates representing
the stock or Ownership Interests of such Material Foreign Subsidiary subject to such pledge, executed assignments separate from
the certificates (stock powers) for such certificates with respect to any Material Foreign Subsidiary thereto executed in blank,
such other documents as shall be reasonably requested to perfect the Lien of such pledge, and, if the lenders under a Primary
Credit Facility have received similar legal opinions, opinions of counsel addressed to the holders of the Notes), in each case in
form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Required Holder(s), and in a manner that the Required Holder(s) shall be
reasonably satisfied that the Collateral Agent has a first priority perfected pledge of or charge over the Ownership Interest pledged
pursuant to such pledge agreements.”
1.3.

Paragraph 6A of the Note Agreement is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“6A. Financial Covenants .

6A(1). Cash Flow Leverage Ratio . The Company will not permit the Cash Flow Leverage Ratio, as of the end of
any fiscal quarter of the Company, to exceed 3.25 to 1.00; provided, however, that, in connection with any Permitted Acquisition
for which the purchase consideration equals or exceeds $200,000,000 (including the Finishing Group Acquisition), the maximum
Cash Flow Leverage Ratio, with prior notice to the holders of the Notes, shall increase to 3.75 to 1.00 for the four fiscal quarter
period beginning with the quarter in which such Permitted Acquisition occurs, so long as (i) the Company is in pro forma
compliance herewith at such 3.75 to 1.00 level before and after giving effect to such Permitted Acquisition and (ii) after any such
Permitted Acquisition that results in an increase to the 3.75 to 1.00 level, the Cash Flow Leverage Ratio permitted under this
paragraph 6A(1) shall decrease to 3.25 to 1.00 for at least one fiscal quarter before becoming eligible to again increase to 3.75 to
1.00 for a new period of four consecutive fiscal quarters (with the understanding that any Permitted Acquisition occurring during
such fiscal quarter would be required to comply with the 3.25 to 1.00 ratio).

6A(2). Interest Coverage Ratio . The Company will not permit the Interest Coverage Ratio for any period of four
consecutive fiscal quarters ending on the last day of any fiscal quarter to be less than 3.00 to 1.00; provided, however, that, in
connection with any Permitted Acquisition for which the purchase consideration equals or exceeds $200,000,000 (including the
Finishing Group Acquisition), the minimum Interest Coverage Ratio, with prior notice to the holders of the Notes, shall decrease
to 2.50 to 1.00 for the four fiscal quarter period beginning with the quarter in which such Permitted Acquisition occurs, so
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long as (i) the Company is in pro forma compliance herewith at such 2.50 to 1.00 level before and after giving effect to such
Permitted Acquisition and (ii) after any such Permitted Acquisition that results in a decrease to the 2.50 to 1.00 level, the Interest
Coverage Ratio permitted under this paragraph 6A(2) shall increase to 3.00 to 1.00 for at least one fiscal quarter before becoming
eligible to again decrease to 2.50 to 1.00 for a new period of four consecutive fiscal quarters (with the understanding that any
Permitted Acquisition occurring during such fiscal quarter would be required to comply with the 3.00 to 1.00 ratio).”
1.4.

Clause (iii) of paragraph 6L of the Note Agreement is hereby deleted.

1.5.

The reference “subject to paragraph 11W” appearing in clause (iii) of paragraph 7A of the Note Agreement is hereby

deleted.
1.6.

Clause (xiii) of paragraph 7A of the Note Agreement is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“(xiii) if (a) any Plan shall fail to satisfy the minimum funding standards of ERISA or the Code for any plan year or part
thereof or a waiver of such standards or extension of any amortization period is sought or granted under section 412 of the Code,
(b) a notice of intent to terminate any Plan shall have been filed with the PBGC or the PBGC shall have instituted proceedings
under ERISA section 4042 to terminate or appoint a trustee to administer any Plan or the PBGC shall have notified the Company
or any ERISA Affiliate that a Plan may become a subject of any such proceedings, or (c) any Plan is in “at-risk status” (within the
meaning of section 430(i)(4) of the Code) and the aggregate value of the liabilities of all Plans that are in at-risk status exceeds the
aggregate value of the assets of all Plans that are in at-risk status by more than $50,000,000 (with liabilities and assets valued in the
manner used to determine the funding target attainment percentage under Section 430 of the Code (disregarding the special rules
contained in Section 430(i)(1)(B)), (d) the Company or any ERISA Affiliate shall have incurred or is reasonably expected to
incur any liability pursuant to Title I or IV of ERISA or the penalty or excise tax provisions of the Code relating to employee
benefit plans, (e) the Company or any ERISA Affiliate withdraws from any Multiemployer Plan, or (f) the Company or any
Subsidiary establishes or amends any employee welfare benefit plan that provides post-employment welfare benefits in a manner
that would increase the liability of the Company or any Subsidiary thereunder; and, if such event or events are events described
in clauses (a), (b) or (d) through (f) above, either individually or together with any other such event or events, could reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; or”
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1.7.

Paragraph 10B of the Note Agreement is hereby amended by amending and restating, or inserting in the appropriate

alphabetical sequence, as the case may be, the following definitions:

“Change of Control” shall mean
(i), either (a) the acquisition by any “person” or “group” (as those terms are used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the
Exchange Act, but excluding any employee benefit plan of the Company or its Subsidiaries, and any Person acting in its capacity
as trustee, agent or other fiduciary or administrator of any such plan) of beneficial ownership (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d4 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, except that a Person shall be deemed to have beneficial ownership of all securities
that such Person has the right to acquire, whether such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage of time), directly
or indirectly, of 30% or more of the voting power of the then-outstanding voting capital stock of the Company; or (b) a change in
the composition of the board of directors of the Company such that continuing directors cease to constitute more than 50% of such
board of directors. As used in this definition, “continuing directors” means, as of any date, (1) those members of the board of
directors of the Company who assumed office prior to such date, and (2) those members of the board of directors of the Company
who assumed office after such date and whose appointment or nomination for election by the Company’s shareholders was
approved by a vote of at least 50% of the directors of the Company in office immediately prior to such appointment or nomination;
or (ii) a “change of control” or any similar event shall occur under, and as defined in documents pertaining to, any Indebtedness in
excess of $10,000,000 in the aggregate (other than the Notes) of the Company or any Material Subsidiary.

“Collateral Agent” shall mean U.S. Bank National Association in its capacity as Collateral Agent under the
Intercreditor Agreement, or any successor in such capacity.

“Contingent Obligation” means, with respect to any Person at the time of any determination, without duplication, any
obligation, contingent or otherwise, of such Person guaranteeing or having the economic effect of guaranteeing any Indebtedness
of any other Person (the “primary obligor”) in any manner, whether directly or otherwise: (i) to purchase or pay (or advance or
supply funds for the purchase or payment of) such Indebtedness or to purchase (or to advance or supply funds for the purchase
of) any direct or indirect security therefor, (ii) to purchase property, securities, Ownership Interests or services for the purpose of
assuring the owner of such Indebtedness of the payment of such Indebtedness, (iii) to maintain working capital, equity capital or

other financial statement condition of the primary obligor so as to enable the primary obligor to pay such Indebtedness or
otherwise to protect the owner thereof against loss in respect thereof, or (iv) entered into for the purpose of assuring in any
manner the owner of such Indebtedness of the payment of such Indebtedness or to protect the owner against loss in respect
thereof; provided, that the term “Contingent Obligation”
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shall not include endorsements for collection or deposit, in each case in the ordinary course of business, and shall not include
earn-outs in connection with Permitted Acquisitions and other acquisitions not prohibited hereby.

“Credit Agreement” shall mean that certain Credit Agreement dated as of May 23, 2011 among the Company, the
Borrowing Subsidiaries defined therein, the Banks named therein, U.S. Bank National Association, as Administrative Agent and
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., as Syndication Agent, as such agreement is amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified
or extended, renewed or refinanced from time to time.

“EBITDA” means, for any period of determination, the consolidated net income of the Company and its Subsidiaries,
plus, to the extent subtracted in determining consolidated net income and without duplication, (i) Interest Expense,
(ii) depreciation, (iii) amortization, (iv) income tax expense, (v) extraordinary, non-operating or noncash charges and expenses for
(including but not limited to non-cash stock compensation expense, non-cash pension expense, workforce reduction or other
restructuring charges, and transaction costs, fees and charges incurred in connection with the acquisition of any substantial portion
of the Ownership Interests or assets of, or a line of business or division of, another Person, including any merger or consolidation
with such other Person), minus, the aggregate amount of extraordinary, non-operating or non-cash gains and income (including,
without limitation, extraordinary or nonrecurring gains, gains from the discontinuance of operations and gains arising from the sale
of assets other than inventory, all as determined in accordance with GAAP). For purposes of calculating EBITDA, with respect to
any period of determination, (i) Permitted Acquisitions that have been made by the Company and its Subsidiaries, including
through mergers or consolidations and including any related financing transactions, during the period of determination shall be

deemed to have occurred on the first day of the period of determination; provided that only the actual historical results of
operations of the Persons so acquired, without adjustment for pro forma expense savings or revenue increases, shall be used for
such calculation; and provided, further, that the EBITDA of the Person so acquired attributable to discontinued operations, as
determined in accordance with GAAP, and operations or businesses disposed of prior to the end of such period of determination,
shall be excluded, and (ii) dispositions that have been made by the Company and its Subsidiaries during the period of determination
shall be deemed to have occurred on the first day of the period of determination; provided that the EBITDA for such period shall
be reduced by an amount equal to the EBITDA (if positive) attributable to the property that is the subject of such disposition for
such period of increased by an amount equal to the EBITDA (if negative) attributable thereto for such period.

“Finishing Group Acquisition” shall mean the acquisition by the Company of substantially all of the domestic and
foreign assets and foreign equity interests of ITW Finishing Group from Illinois Tool Works Inc.
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“Intercreditor Agreement” shall mean that certain Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of
May 23, 2011, by and among U.S. Bank National Association, as the administrative agent under the Credit Agreement, U.S. Bank
National Association, as the collateral agent appointed pursuant to the terms and conditions thereof, and the holders of the Notes,
as such agreement is amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to time.

“Interest Expense” shall mean, for any period of determination, the aggregate consolidated amount, without
duplication, of interest expense determined in accordance with GAAP excluding amortization of financing fees to the extent
included in interest expense but specifically including (i) all but the principal component of payments in respect of conditional sale
contracts, Capitalized Leases and other title retention agreements, (ii) commissions, discounts and other fees and charges with

respect to letters of credit and bankers’ acceptance financings and (iii) Rate Hedging Obligations, in each case determined in
accordance with GAAP. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for the first four fiscal quarters following the consummation of a
Material Acquisition, Interest Expense shall be adjusted, on a basis acceptable to the Required Holders, to give effect to any such
acquisition as if it had occurred on the first day of the measurement period.

“Material Acquisition” means a Permitted Acquisition by the Company or a Subsidiary where total consideration for
such acquisition exceeds $25,000,000.

“Material Foreign Subsidiary” shall mean any Foreign Subsidiary that is a Material Subsidiary.
“Permitted Acquisition” shall mean the acquisition by the Company or a Subsidiary of all or substantially all of the
Ownership Interests or assets of any other Person (including by merger) or of all or substantially all of the assets of a division,
business unit, product line or line of business of any other Person, provided that (i) following such acquisition, the Company shall
be in compliance with paragraph 6G hereof, (ii) such acquisition shall occur at a time that no Event of Default shall have occurred
and continued hereunder and no Event of Default shall result therefrom, (iii) if it is an acquisition of Ownership Interests and a
new Material Subsidiary is thereby created, such Material Subsidiary shall become a Guarantor or the Company or Subsidiary that
is the owner thereof shall have pledged the Ownership Interest thereof, if so required by paragraph 5K or 5M hereof, (iv) such
acquisition shall be consummated on a non-hostile basis and shall have been approved by the board of directors (or similar
governing body) of any Person acquired, and (v) the Company shall have furnished to the holders of the Notes a certificate signed
by a Responsible Employee demonstrating in reasonable detail pro forma compliance with the financial covenants contained in
paragraphs 6A(1), 6A(2) and 6J for the applicable calculation period, in each case, calculated as if such acquisition, including the
consideration therefor, had been consummated on the first day of such period.
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“Pledge Agreement” has the meaning given in Amendment No. 1 to this Agreement.

“Rate Hedging Obligations” means any and all obligations and exposure of the Company and its Subsidiaries under
(i) any and all agreements, devices or arrangements designed to protect the Company or any Subsidiary from the fluctuations of
interest rates or currencies, including interest rate or foreign exchange agreements, interest rate or currency cap or collar
protection agreements, and interest rate and currency options, puts and warrants, determined on a net, mark-to-market basis, and
(ii) any and all cancellations, buy backs, reversals, terminations or assignments of any of the foregoing.
“Senior Creditor ” means any Person that (i) from time to time extends credit to the Company that is not subordinate or junior in right of payment or Lien priority to the Notes and the other obligations under this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents, (ii) extends credit
that constitutes a Primary Credit Facility and (iii) becomes a party to and is bound by the terms of the Intercreditor Agreement (including, without limitation, all limitations set forth therein).

1.8.

The following definition is deleted from paragraph 10B of the Note Agreement:

“Significant Acquisition”

1.9.

Paragraph 11V is amended by adding the following sentence to the end thereof:

“In addition, if a Material Foreign Subsidiary, 65% of the Ownership Interests of which are pledged to the Collateral
Agent (such Subsidiary referred to as a “Restructured Foreign Subsidiary” ), becomes a direct or indirect wholly owned
Subsidiary of another Foreign Subsidiary (such other Foreign Subsidiary being referred to herein as a “Foreign Holding
Subsidiary” ), the holders of the Notes hereby authorize the Collateral Agent to release such pledge of the Ownership Interests
of such Restructured Subsidiary if requested by the Company, provided that (a) at least 65% of the outstanding Ownership
Interests of such Foreign Holding Subsidiary are pledged to the Collateral Agent pursuant to the Pledge Agreement and (b) no
holder of any Indebtedness outstanding under any Primary Credit Facility shall have received any release, waiver or similar fees
for the foregoing release unless the holders of the Notes receive fees on a pro rata basis in proportion to the relative outstanding
principal amounts of the Notes and the principal amount of the Indebtedness outstanding under such Primary Credit Facility
(including, in the case of a revolving credit facility, the aggregate principal amount of additional loans that the lenders are legally
committed to fund thereunder).”
1.10. Paragraph 11W of the Note Agreement is hereby deleted.

1.11. Schedule 8A(1) to the Note Agreement is replaced by Schedule 8A(1) attached to this letter agreement.
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SECTION 2. Effectiveness . The amendments in Section 1 of this letter agreement shall become effective on the date (the
“Effective Date” ) that each of the following conditions has been satisfied:
2.1. Documents . Each holder of a Note shall have received original counterparts of this letter agreement executed by the
holders of the Notes, the Company and each Guarantor.
2.2. New Credit Agreement . Each holder of a Note shall have received copies of the executed Credit Agreement (as defined in
the Note Agreement as amended hereby) in form and substance satisfactory to each holder of a Note, the Credit Agreement shall be in
full force and effect and all conditions to the obligations of the Banks named therein to make the initial loans thereunder shall have been

satisfied.

2.3. Joinder to Guaranty Agreement . Each holder of a Note shall have received a copy of a joinder to the Guaranty Agreement
in the form of exhibit attached to the Note Agreement executed by Graco Holdings Inc.

. E a c h h o l2.4.
der of a Note shall have received an executed copy of the Intercreditor Agreement in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A , and such Intercreditor Agreement shall be in full force and effect.
2.5. Pledge Agreement . Each holder of a Note shall have received an executed copy of the pledge agreement (the “Pledge
Agreement”) required by paragraph 5M of the Note Agreement as amended hereby in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, and such
Pledge Agreement shall be in full force and effect.

2.6. Representations . All representations set forth in Section 3 shall be true and correct as of the Effective Date, except for
such representations and warranties that speak of an earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be true and
correct as of such earlier date.
2.7. Proceedings . All corporate and other proceedings taken or to be taken in connection with the transactions contemplated by
this letter agreement shall be satisfactory to each holder of a Note and its counsel, and each holder of a Note shall have received all such
counterpart originals or certified or other copies of such documents as they may reasonably request.

SECTION 3. Representations and Warranties.

The Company represents and warrants to each holder of Note that

(i) immediately before and after giving effect to the amendments to the Note Agreement in Section 1 hereof, (a) each representation and
warranty set forth in paragraph 8 of the Note Agreement is true and correct other than those representations and warranties that speak as
of a certain date, in which case such representation and warranty was true and correct as of such earlier date, (b) no Event of Default or
Default exists and (ii) all necessary or required consents to this letter agreement have been obtained and are in full force and effect.
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SECTION 4. Reference to and Effect on Note Agreement . Upon the effectiveness of the amendments made in this letter
agreement, each reference to the Note Agreement in any other document, instrument or agreement shall mean and be a reference to
the Note Agreement as modified by this letter agreement. Except as specifically set forth in Section 1 hereof, the Note Agreement and
the Notes shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects. Except as specifically stated in
Section 1 of this letter agreement, the execution, delivery and effectiveness of this letter agreement shall not (a) amend the Note
Agreement, any Note or any other Transaction Document, (b) operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of the holder of any
Note, or (c) constitute a waiver of, or consent to any departure from, any provision of the Note Agreement, any Note or any of the other
Transaction Documents at any time. The execution, delivery and effectiveness of this letter agreement shall not be construed as a
course of dealing or other implication that any holder of Notes has agreed to or is prepared to grant any amendment to, waiver of or
consent under the Note Agreement, any Note or any other Transaction Document in the future, whether or not under similar
circumstances.
SECTION 5. Expenses. The Company hereby confirms its obligations under the Note Agreement, whether or not the
transactions hereby contemplated are consummated, to pay, promptly after request by the holders of the Notes, all reasonable out-ofpocket costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees and expenses, incurred by such holders in connection with this letter agreement or
the transactions contemplated hereby, in enforcing any rights under this letter agreement, or in responding to any subpoena or other
legal process or informal investigative demand issued in connection with this letter agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.
The obligations of the Company under this Section 5 shall survive transfer by any holder of any Note and payment of any Note.
SECTION 6. Reaffirmation . Each Guarantor hereby consents to the foregoing amendments to the Note Agreement and
hereby ratifies and reaffirms all of its payment and performance obligations, contingent or otherwise, under the Guaranty Agreement
after giving effect to such amendments. Each Guarantor hereby acknowledges that, notwithstanding the foregoing amendments, that
the Guaranty Agreement remains in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and confirmed. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, each Guarantor agrees and confirms that the Guaranty Agreement continues to guaranty the obligations arising under or in
connection with the Note Agreement, as the same may be amended by this letter agreement.
SECTION 7. Governing Law.
THIS LETTER AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF
CONFLICT OF LAWS OF SUCH STATE WHICH WOULD OTHERWISE CAUSE THIS LETTER TO BE CONSTRUED OR
ENFORCED OTHER THAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.
SECTION 8. Counterparts; Section Titles . This letter agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by
different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all
of which taken together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of
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a signature page to this letter agreement by facsimile or electronic transmission shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed
counterpart of this letter agreement. The section titles contained in this letter agreement are and shall be without substance, meaning or
content of any kind whatsoever and are not a part of the agreement between the parties hereto.

SECTION 9 Acknowledgement of Status of Existing Credit Agreement . The Company acknowledges that the Credit
Agreement (as defined in the Note Agreement prior to giving effect to the amendments contained in Section 1 hereof) has been
renewed, extended, refinanced or replaced as contemplated by clause (a) of the definition of “Permitted Foreign Stock Pledge” contained
in the Note Agreement as of the Effective Date.
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Very truly yours,

THE PRUDENTIAL INSURANCE COMPANY
OF AMERICA
By:

/s/ Dianna Carr
Vice President

GIBRALTAR LIFE INSURANCE CO., LTD.
THE PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY, LTD.
By: Prudential Investment Management (Japan),
Inc.,
as Investment Manager
By: Prudential Investment Management, Inc.,
as Sub-Adviser
By:

/s/ Dianna Carr
Vice President

FORETHOUGHT LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY
RGA REINSURANCE COMPANY
MTL INSURANCE COMPANY
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE
COMPANY
By: Prudential Private Placement Investors, L.P.
(as Investment Advisor)
By: Prudential Private Placement Investors, Inc.
(as its General Partner)
By:

/s/ Dianna Carr
Vice President
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Accepted and Agreed to:

GRACO INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ James A. Graner
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer

GRACO MINNESOTA INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ James A. Graner
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer

GRACO OHIO INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ James A. Graner
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer

GRACO HOLDINGS INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ James A. Graner
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer
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SCHEDULE 8A(1)
SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiary

Jurisdiction

Holders of Ownership
Interests

Graco Australia Pty Ltd.
Graco California Inc.
Graco Canada Inc.
Graco do Brasil Lmtda
Graco Fluid Equipment
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Graco Fluid Equipment
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Australia
Minnesota
Canada
Brazil
People’s Republic
of China
People’s Republic
of China

Graco GmbH
Graco Holdings Inc.

Germany
Minnesota

Graco Hong Kong Ltd.

Graco Indiana Inc.
Graco K.K.
Graco Korea Inc.
Graco Ltd.
Graco Minnesota Inc.

People’s Republic
of China (Special
Adm Region)
Delaware
Japan
Korea
United Kingdom
Minnesota

100% by the Company
100% by the Company
100% by the Company
100% by the Company
100% by the Company
100% by the Company

Graco N.V.
Graco Ohio Inc.

Belgium
Ohio

100% by the Company 2
100% by the Company

Graco S.A.S.
Graco Trading (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd.
Gusmer Corporation
Gusmer Canada Ltd.

France
People’s Republic
of China
Delaware

Gusmer Sudamerica
S.A.

Argentina

100% by the Company
100% by Graco Minnesota
Inc.
100% by the Company
100% by Gusmer
Corporation
100% by the Company 3

100% by the Company
100% by the Company
100% by the Company
100% by the Company 1

Liable under a
Contingent Obligation,
or as a Co-Borrower or
Co-Obligor, under a
Primary Credit Facility
No
No
No
No
No

100% by the Company

No
100% by Graco Minnesota
Inc.
100% by the Company
100% by the Company

No
Guarantor under the
Credit Agreement

No

No
No
No
No
Guarantor under the
Credit Agreement

No
Guarantor under the
Credit Agreement

1

2
3

Canada

No
No
No
No
No

Includes shares held by executive officers of the Company or the relevant subsidiary to satisfy the requirements of local law.
Includes shares held by executive officers of the Company or the relevant subsidiary to satisfy the requirements of local law.
Shares held by executive officers of the Company to satisfy the requirements of local law.
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Exhibit A

INTERCREDITOR AND COLLATERAL AGENCY AGREEMENT
This Intercreditor
Agreement”
and Collateral
), dated
Agency
as of May
Agreement
23, 2011,
(this
is entered
“
into by and
among U.S. Bank National Association, as the administrative agent under the below-defined Bank Credit Agreement (the “ Bank
Agent”), U.S. Bank National Association, as the collateral agent appointed pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof (the “ Collateral
Agent”), and The Prudential Insurance Company of America, Gibraltar Life Insurance Co., Ltd., The Prudential Life Insurance
Company, Ltd., Forethought Life Insurance Company, RGA Reinsurance Company, MTL Insurance Company and Zurich American
Insurance Company (each, together with its successors and permitted assigns, and any other holder of any Senior Notes, a
“Noteholder ”, and collectively the “ Noteholders ”).

WITNESSETH :
WHEREAS, Graco Inc. (the “ Company ”), the institutions from time to time party thereto as lenders (the “ Banks”),
and the Bank Agent are parties to a Credit Agreement dated as of May 23, 2011 (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time, the “ Bank Credit Agreement ”);
WHEREAS, the Company and the Noteholders named in the Purchaser Schedule attached thereto are party to that
certain Note Agreement, dated as of March 11, 2011 (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time, the “March 11, 2011 Note Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has issued or expects to issue its
4.00% Series A Senior Notes due March 11, 2018 (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from

time to time, the “Series A Notes” ), 5.01% Series B Senior Notes due March 11, 2023 (as the same may be amended, restated,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Series B Notes” ), 4.88% Series C Senior Notes due January 26, 2023 (as
the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Series C Notes” ) and 5.35% Series
D Senior Notes due July 26, 2026 (as the case may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified form time to time, the
“Series D Notes” ); and
WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Company will enter into a Note Agreement (as the same may be amended,
n

restated,
d
supplemented
,
tor otherwise
o
modified
g
e from time
t
tohtime, the
e
r
w
i
t
h
t
h
e
March 2011 Note Agreement, the “Note Purchase Agreements” ) with one or more affiliates of The Prudential Insurance Company

of America under which the Company will issue one or more additional series of its senior notes (each as amended, restated,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Additional Senior Notes” and, together with the Series A Notes, the
Series B Notes, the Series C Notes and the Series D Notes, collectively, the “Senior Notes” ) in the aggregate principal amount of
$75,000,000 (the Senior Notes, together with the Bank Credit Agreement, the Note Purchase Agreements and the agreements,
documents and instruments delivered in connection with any or all of the foregoing (as each may be amended,
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restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time), the “ Senior Indebtedness Documents ”);

WHEREAS, the Banks and the Noteholders (together with the Bank Agent, the “ Creditors”) have provided the
Company with various loans, extensions of credit and financial accommodations under the Senior Indebtedness Documents
(collectively, the “Senior Indebtedness ”);
WHEREAS, in order to make and continue making and extending such loans, extensions of credit and financial
accommodations, the Creditors have required that the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “ Grantors ”) guaranty
and/or secure the Obligations (as hereafter defined);
WHEREAS, the Creditors wish to appoint the Collateral Agent to hold all security interests and liens granted by the
Grantors in respect of the Obligations; and

WHEREAS, the Creditors wish to agree upon certain matters in respect of the Senior Indebtedness, including, without
limitation, payment priorities and the application of Collateral (as defined below) proceeds;
NOW, THEREFORE, for the above reasons, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1.

Definitions .

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings specified with respect thereto below.
Any plural term that is used herein in the singular shall be taken to mean each entity or item of the defined class and any singular term
that is used herein in the plural shall be taken to mean all of the entities or items of the defined class, collectively.
“Affiliate” of any Person shall mean any other Person which directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under
common control with such first Person. A Person shall be deemed to control a corporation or other entity if such Person possesses,
directly or indirectly, the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such corporation or other entity,
whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

“Collateral” shall mean all property and assets, and interests in property and assets, upon or in which the Grantors have
granted a lien or security interest to the Collateral Agent to secure all or any part of the Obligations.

“Collateral Agent Expenses” shall mean, without limitation, all costs and expenses incurred by the Collateral Agent in
connection with the performance of its duties under this Agreement, including the realization upon or protection of the Collateral or
enforcing or defending any lien upon or security interest in the Collateral or any other action taken in accordance with the provisions of
this Agreement, expenses incurred for legal counsel (including reasonable allocated costs of staff counsel) in connection with the
foregoing, and any other costs, expenses or liabilities incurred by the Collateral Agent for which the Collateral Agent is entitled
Exh. A-2
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to be reimbursed or indemnified by any Grantor pursuant to this Agreement or any Collateral Document or by the Creditors pursuant to
this Agreement.

“Collateral Documents” shall mean all agreements, documents and instruments (including, without limitation, all
pledge agreements, security agreements, mortgages, collateral assignments, financing statements, and other perfection documents)
entered into, delivered or authorized from time to time by any Grantor in favor of the Collateral Agent in respect of the Obligations or
otherwise entered into, delivered or authorized from time to time by a Grantor to secure all or any part of the Obligations, as each may be
amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

“Enforcement” shall mean:
(a)
for the Bank Agent or any Bank to make demand for payment of or accelerate the time for payment prior to the
scheduled payment date of any loan, extension of credit or other financial accommodation under the Bank Credit Agreement or any
agreement, document or instrument delivered in connection therewith or to call for funding of cash collateral for any Letter of Credit
prior to being presented with a draft drawn thereunder (or in the event the draft is a time draft, prior to its due date), in each case on
account of an “Event of Default” under and as defined in the Bank Credit Agreement;

(b)
for any Noteholder to make demand for payment of or accelerate the time for payment prior to the scheduled
payment date of any loan, extension of credit or other financial accommodation under either Note Purchase Agreement, the Senior
Notes, or the agreements, documents and instruments delivered in connection therewith;
(c)

for the Bank Agent or any Bank to terminate its commitment to extend loans or other financial accommodations,

including issuances of Letters of Credit, to the Company or any other Grantor prior to the final scheduled payment date for all
Obligations thereunder or prior to the scheduled termination date for such commitment (as such scheduled termination date is in effect
on the date hereof or, if later, such date to which any such scheduled termination date may hereafter be extended) , in each case on
account of an “Event of Default” under and as defined in the Bank Credit Agreement;

(d)
for the Bank Agent or any Bank to commence judicial enforcement of any rights or remedies under or with
respect to the Obligations, the Bank Credit Agreement or any agreement, document or instrument delivered in connection therewith, or
to set off against any balances held by the Bank Agent or such Bank for the account of any Grantor or any other property at any time
held or owing by the Bank Agent or such Bank to or for the credit or account of any Grantor;
(e)
for any Noteholder to commence judicial enforcement of any rights or remedies under or with respect to the
Obligations, either Note Purchase Agreement, the Senior Notes, or any agreement, document or instrument delivered in connection
therewith, or, if applicable, to set off against or appropriate any balances held by such Noteholder for the account of any Grantor or any
other property at any time held or owing by such Noteholder to or for the credit or account of any Grantor;
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(f)
for the Collateral Agent to commence the judicial enforcement of any rights or remedies under any Collateral
Document (other than an action solely for the purpose of establishing or defending the lien or security interest intended to be created by
any Collateral Document upon or in any Collateral as against or from claims of third parties on or in such Collateral), to setoff against
any balances held by it for the account of any Grantor or any other property at any time held or owing by it to or for the credit or for the
account of any Grantor or to otherwise take any action to realize upon the Collateral (provided, however, that “Enforcement” shall not
include the Bank Agent’s charging of the Borrower’s deposit account for non-accelerated amounts due in the ordinary course pursuant
to the Credit Agreement); or

(g)
the commencement by, against or with respect to any Grantor of any proceeding under any bankruptcy,
reorganization, compromise, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation or similar law or for the
appointment of a receiver for any Grantor or its assets.

“Event of Default” shall mean (i) an “Event of Default” under and as defined in the Bank Credit Agreement, (ii) an
“Event of Default” under and as defined in either Note Purchase Agreement or the Senior Notes, or (iii) any event, occurrence or
action (or any failure to take any of the foregoing) that permits or automatically results in the acceleration of the repayment of any
amount of Obligations under a Senior Indebtedness Document.

“Insolvent Entity” shall mean any entity that has (i) become or is insolvent or has a parent company that has become or is
insolvent or (ii) become the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or has had a receiver, conservator, trustee or custodian
appointed for it, or has taken any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of or acquiescence in any such proceeding
or appointment or has a parent company that has become the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or has had a receiver,
conservator, trustee or custodian appointed for it, or has taken any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of or
acquiescence in any such proceeding or appointment.

“L/C Interests” shall mean, with respect to any Bank, such Bank’s direct or participation interests in all unpaid
reimbursement obligations with respect to Letters of Credit, and such Bank’s direct obligations or risk participations with respect to
undrawn amounts of all outstanding Letters of Credit; provided, that the undrawn amounts of outstanding Letters of Credit shall be
considered to have been reduced to the extent of any amount on deposit with the Collateral Agent at any time as provided in Section 5(b)
hereof.
“Letters of Credit ” shall mean all letters of credit issued under the Bank Credit Agreement.

“Obligation Share” shall mean, with respect to any Creditor at any time, a fraction (expressed as a percentage), the
numerator of which is the amount of Obligations owing to such Creditor at such time, and the denominator of which is the aggregate
amount of all Obligations owing to all of the Creditors at such time.
“Obligations” shall mean each and every monetary obligation owed by a Grantor to the Creditors and the Collateral Agent
under the Senior Indebtedness Documents, including,
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without limitation, (1) the outstanding principal amount of, accrued and unpaid interest on, and any unpaid Yield-Maintenance Amount or
other breakage or prepayment indemnification due with respect to Senior Indebtedness, (2) any unpaid reimbursement obligations with

respect to any Letters of Credit, (3) any undrawn amounts of any outstanding Letters of Credit, and (4) any other unpaid amounts
including amounts in respect of hedging obligations, foreign exchange obligations and treasury and cash management obligations
permitted under the Senior Indebtedness Documents, and fees, expenses, indemnifications, and reimbursements due from the Grantors
under any of the Senior Indebtedness Documents; provided that the undrawn amounts of any outstanding Letters of Credit shall be
considered to have been reduced to the extent of any amount on deposit with the Collateral Agent at any time as provided in Section 5(b)
hereof. The term “Obligations” shall include all of the foregoing indebtedness, liabilities and obligations whether or not allowed as a
claim in any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceeding.

“Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust or other entity.

“Principal Exposure” shall mean, with respect to any Creditor at any time, (i) if such Creditor is a Bank, the aggregate
amount of such Bank’s commitments to extend revolving credit (including letters of credit) under the Bank Credit Agreement plus, to
the extent any term loans have been extended, the principal amount of such term loans, or, if the Banks shall then have terminated their
commitments to extend credit under the Bank Credit Agreement, the sum of (x) the outstanding principal amount of all of such Bank’s
loans under the Bank Credit Agreement and (y) the outstanding face amount and/or principal amount of such Bank’s L/C Interests at
such time, and (ii) if such Creditor is a Noteholder, the outstanding principal amount of such Creditor’s Senior Notes at such time.
“Pro Rata Share” shall mean, with respect to any Creditor at any time, a fraction, expressed as a percentage, the
numerator of which is the amount of such Creditor’s Principal Exposure at such time, and the denominator of which is the aggregate
amount of Principal Exposure of all of the Creditors of the same class (i.e. Banks or Noteholders, as applicable) at such time.
“Pro Rata Expenses Share” shall mean, with respect to any Creditor at any time, a fraction, expressed as a percentage,
the numerator of which is the amount of such Creditor’s Principal Exposure at such time, and the denominator of which is the aggregate
amount of Principal Exposure of all Creditors at such time.
“Qualified Creditor” shall mean any Creditor which is not an Affiliate of any Grantor.

“Required Creditors” shall mean, at any time, (i) Banks whose Pro Rata Shares represent greater than 50% of the
aggregate Principal Exposure of all of the Banks and (ii) Noteholders whose Pro Rata Shares represent greater than 50% of the aggregate
Principal Exposure of all of the Noteholders; provided, however, that only Pro Rata Shares of Senior Indebtedness held by Qualified
Creditors shall be included in this determination; provided, further, that if at any time Obligations owing to Banks or Noteholders, as the
case may be, are
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less than both (A) $1,000,000, and (B) 10% of the aggregate Obligations (the Banks or the Noteholders, as the case may be, a
“Deminimis Group” ), then the Required Creditors shall be determined without regard to clause (i) if the Deminimis Group is the
Banks, and clause (ii) if the Deminimis Group is the Noteholders.

“Specified Provisions” shall mean any of the terms relating to (i) amounts or timing of payment of interest or fees,
(ii) terms relating to required payments or prepayments of any Obligations, (iii) financial and negative covenants set forth in the Senior
Indebtedness Documents (including paragraph 6 of either Note Purchase Agreement and Article IX of the Bank Credit Agreement),
(iv) covenants relating to the operations of the Company or its subsidiaries, (v) events of default, and (vi) definitions as used in any of the
foregoing.
“Yield-Maintenance Amount” shall mean the “Yield-Maintenance Amount” as defined in either Note Purchase

Agreement.

2.

Appointment of Collateral Agent .

(a)
Appointment of Collateral Agent . Subject in all respects to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the
Bank Agent, for itself and on behalf of the Banks, and the Noteholders hereby appoint U.S. Bank National Association to act as collateral
agent for the benefit of the Creditors (the “ Collateral Agent ”) with respect to the liens upon and the security interests in the Collateral
and the rights and remedies granted under and pursuant to the Collateral Documents, and U.S. Bank National Association hereby accepts
such appointment and agrees to act as such collateral agent. The agency created by this Section 2 shall in no way impair or affect any of
the rights and powers of, or impart any duties or obligations upon, U.S. Bank National Association in its individual capacity as a lender or

creditor under any Senior Indebtedness Document. To the extent legally necessary to enable the Collateral Agent to enforce or
otherwise foreclose and realize upon any of the liens or security interests in the Collateral in any legal proceeding which the Collateral
Agent either commences or joins as a party in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, each of the Creditors agrees to join as a
party in such proceeding and take such action therein concurrently to enforce and obtain a judgment for the payment of the Obligations
held by it.
(b)

Duties of Collateral Agent .

Subject to the Collateral Agent having been directed to take such action in

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, each Creditor hereby irrevocably authorizes the Collateral Agent to take such action on its

behalf under the provisions of the Collateral Documents and any other instruments, documents and agreements referred to in the
Collateral Documents and to exercise such powers under the Collateral Documents as are specifically delegated to the Collateral Agent
by the terms of the Collateral Documents and such other powers as are reasonably incidental thereto. Subject to the provisions of
Section 11 of this Agreement, the Collateral Agent is hereby irrevocably authorized to take all actions on behalf of the Creditors to
enforce the rights and remedies of the Collateral Agent and the Creditors provided for in the Collateral Documents or by applicable law
with respect to the liens upon and security interests in the Collateral granted to secure the Obligations provided, however, that,
notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Collateral Documents, (i) the Collateral Agent shall act solely at and in accordance

with the written direction of the Required Creditors, (ii) the Collateral Agent shall not, without the written consent of all of the
Qualified
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Creditors, release or terminate by affirmative action or consent any lien upon or security interest in any Collateral granted under any
Collateral Documents (except (x) upon (1) dispositions of Collateral by a Grantor and (2) removal of the Material Subsidiary (as defined
in the Bank Credit Agreement) designation of a Subsidiary (as defined in the Bank Credit Agreement), in each case as permitted in
accordance with the terms of all of the Senior Indebtedness Documents and prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default, (y) upon
disposition of such Collateral after an Event of Default pursuant to direction given under clause (i) of this Section 2(b) and (x) to the
extent authorized under the provisions of the last sentence of Section 12.1 of the Bank Credit Agreement, paragraph 11V of the
March 11, 2011 Purchase Note Agreement and the comparable provision of the Additional Note Purchase Agreement), and (iii) the
Collateral Agent shall not accept any Obligations in whole or partial consideration for the disposition of any Collateral without the
written consent of all of the Qualified Creditors. The Collateral Agent agrees to make such demands and give such notices under the
Collateral Documents as may be requested by, and to take such action to enforce the Collateral Documents and to foreclose upon,
collect and dispose of the Collateral or of the Collateral Documents as may be directed by, the Required Creditors; provided, however,
that the Collateral Agent shall not be required to take any action that is contrary to law or the terms of the Collateral Documents or this
Agreement. Once a direction to take any action has been given by the Required Creditors to the Collateral Agent, and subject to any
other directions which may be given from time to time by the Required Creditors, decisions regarding the manner in which any such
action is to be implemented and conducted (with the exception of any decision to settle, compromise or dismiss any legal proceeding,
with or without prejudice) shall be made by the Collateral Agent, with the assistance and upon the advice of its counsel. Notwithstanding
the provisions of the preceding sentence, any decision to settle, compromise or dismiss any legal proceeding, with or without prejudice,
which implements, approves or results in or has the effect of causing any release, change or occurrence, where such release, change or
occurrence otherwise would require unanimous approval of all of the Qualified Creditors pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, also
shall require the unanimous approval of all of the Qualified Creditors.
(c)
Requesting Instructions . The Collateral Agent may at any time request directions from the Creditors as to any
course of action or other matter relating to the performance of its duties under this Agreement and the Collateral Documents, and the
Creditors shall respond to such request in a reasonably prompt manner.
(d)
Emergency Actions . If the Collateral Agent has asked the Required Creditors for instructions following the
receipt of any notice of an Event of Default and if the Required Creditors have not responded to such request within 30 days, the

Collateral Agent shall be authorized to take such actions with regard to such Event of Default which the Collateral Agent, in good faith,
believes to be reasonably required to protect the Collateral from damage or destruction; provided, however, that once instructions have
been received from the Required Creditors, the actions of the Collateral Agent shall be governed thereby and the Collateral Agent shall
not take any further action which would be contrary to such instructions.
(e)
Collateral Document Amendments . An amendment, supplement, modification, restatement or waiver of any
provision of any Collateral Document, any consent to any departure by any Grantor from any such provision, or the execution or

acceptance by the Collateral Agent of any Collateral Document not in effect on the date of this Agreement shall be
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effective if, and only if, consented to in writing by the Required Creditors (with the understanding that the Collateral Documents that
are identified in Exhibit A hereto are hereby approved by the Required Creditors); provided, however, that, (i) no such amendment,
supplement, modification, restatement, waiver, consent or such Collateral Document not in effect on the date of this Agreement which
imposes any additional responsibilities upon the Collateral Agent shall be effective without the written consent of the Collateral Agent,
and (ii) no such amendment, supplement, modification, waiver or consent shall release any Collateral from the lien or security interest
created by any Collateral Document not subject to the exception in Section 2(b)(ii) of this Agreement or narrow the scope of the
property or assets in which a lien or security interest is granted pursuant to any Collateral Document or change the description of the
obligations secured thereby without the written consent of all Qualified Creditors.
(f)

Administrative Actions . The Collateral Agent shall have the right to take such actions under this Agreement and

under the Collateral Documents, not inconsistent with the instructions of the Required Creditors or the terms of the Collateral
Documents and this Agreement, as the Collateral Agent deems necessary or appropriate to perfect or continue the perfection of the liens
on the Collateral for the benefit of the Creditors.
(g)
Collateral Agent Acting Through Others . The Collateral Agent may perform any of its duties under this
Agreement and the Collateral Documents by or through attorneys (which attorneys may be the same attorneys who represent any
Creditor), agents or other persons reasonably deemed appropriate by the Collateral Agent. In addition, the Collateral Agent may act in
good faith reliance upon the opinion or advice of attorneys selected by the Collateral Agent. In all cases the Collateral Agent may pay
reasonable fees and expenses of all such attorneys, agents or other persons as may be employed in connection with the performance of
its duties under this Agreement and the Collateral Documents.

(h)

Resignation of Collateral Agent .

(i)
The Collateral Agent (A) may resign at any time upon notice to the Creditors, and (B) may be
removed at any time upon the written request of the Required Creditors sent to the Collateral Agent and the other Creditors. For
the purposes of any determination of Required Creditors under this Section 2(h)(i), the Pro Rata Share of any Insolvent Entity
shall be disregarded.

(ii)

If the Collateral Agent shall resign or be removed, the Required Creditors shall have the right to

select a replacement Collateral Agent by notice to the Collateral Agent and the other Creditors.

(iii)
Upon any replacement of the Collateral Agent, the Collateral Agent shall assign all of the liens upon
and security interests in all Collateral under the Collateral Documents, and all right, title and interest of the Collateral Agent under
all the Collateral Documents, to the replacement Collateral Agent, without recourse to the Collateral Agent or any Creditor and at
the expense of the Company.

(iv)

No resignation or removal of the Collateral Agent shall become effective until a replacement

Collateral Agent shall have been selected as provided in this
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Agreement and shall have assumed in writing the obligations of the Collateral Agent under this Agreement and under the
Collateral Documents. In the event that a replacement Collateral Agent shall not have been selected as provided in this Agreement

or shall not have assumed such obligations within 90 days after the resignation or removal of the Collateral Agent, then the
Collateral Agent may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a replacement Collateral Agent.

(v)

Any replacement Collateral Agent shall be a bank, trust company, or insurance company having

capital, surplus and undivided profits of at least $250,000,000.
(i)

Indemnification of Collateral Agent .

Each Grantor, by its consent to this Agreement, hereby agrees to

indemnify and hold the Collateral Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents (including, but not limited to, any attorneys acting
at the direction or on behalf of the Collateral Agent) harmless against any and all costs, claims, damages, penalties, liabilities, losses and
expenses (including, but not limited to, court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees) which may be incurred by or asserted against the
Collateral Agent or any such officers, directors, employees and agents by reason of its status as agent under this Agreement or which
pertain, whether directly or indirectly, to this Agreement, the Collateral Documents, or to any action or failure to act of the Collateral
Agent as agent hereunder, except to the extent any such action or failure to act by the Collateral Agent constitutes gross negligence,
willful misconduct or a breach of this Agreement. The obligations of the Grantor under this Section 2(i) shall survive the payment in
full of the Obligations and the termination of this Agreement.
(j)
Liability of Collateral Agent . In the absence of gross negligence, willful misconduct or a breach of this
Agreement, the Collateral Agent will not be liable to any Creditor for any action or failure to act or any error of judgment, negligence,
mistake or oversight on its part or on the part of any of its officers, directors, employees or agents. To the extent not paid by any Grantor,
each Creditor hereby severally, and not jointly, agrees to indemnify and hold the Collateral Agent and each of its officers, directors,
employees and agents (collectively, “Indemnitees” ) harmless from and against any and all liabilities, costs, claims, damages, penalties,
losses and actions of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for
any Indemnitee) incurred by or asserted against any Indemnitee arising out of or in relation to this Agreement or the Collateral
Documents or its status as agent under this Agreement or any action taken or omitted to be taken by any Indemnitee pursuant to and in
accordance with any of the Collateral Documents and this Agreement, except to the extent arising from the gross negligence, willful
misconduct or breach of this Agreement, with each Creditor being liable only for its Pro Rata Expenses Share of any such
indemnification liability. The obligations of the Creditors under this Section 2(j) shall survive the payment in full of the Obligations and
the termination of this Agreement.

(k)
No Reliance on Collateral Agent . Neither the Collateral Agent nor any of its officers, directors, employees or
agents (including, but not limited to, any attorneys acting at the direction or on behalf of the Collateral Agent) shall be deemed to have
made any representations or warranties, express or implied, with respect to, nor shall the Collateral Agent or any such officer, director,
employee or agent be liable to any Creditor or responsible for (i) any warranties or recitals made by any Grantor in the Collateral
Documents or any other
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agreement, certificate, instrument or document executed by any Grantor in connection with the Collateral Documents, (ii) the due or
proper execution or authorization of this Agreement or any Collateral Documents by any party other than the Collateral Agent, or the
effectiveness, enforceability, validity, genuineness or collectability as against any Grantor of any Collateral Document or any other
agreement, certificate, instrument or document executed by any Grantor in connection with any Collateral Document, (iii) the present
or future solvency or financial worth of any Grantor, or (iv) the value, condition, existence or ownership of any of the Collateral or the
perfection of any lien upon or security interest in the Collateral (whether now or hereafter held or granted) or the sufficiency of any
action, filing, notice or other procedure taken or to be taken to perfect, attach or vest any lien or security interest in the Collateral.
Except as may be required by Section 2(b) of this Agreement, the Collateral Agent shall not be required, either initially or on a
continuing basis, to (A) make any inquiry, investigation, evaluation or appraisal respecting, or enforce performance by any Grantor of,
any of the covenants, agreements or obligations of any Grantor under any Collateral Document, or (B) undertake any other actions
(other than actions expressly required to be taken by it under this Agreement). Nothing in any of the Collateral Documents, expressed
or implied, is intended to or shall be so construed as to impose upon the Collateral Agent any obligations, duties or responsibilities except
as set forth in this Agreement and in the Collateral Documents. The Collateral Agent shall be protected in acting upon any notice,
request, consent, certificate, order, affidavit, letter, telegram, telecopy or other paper or document given to it by any person reasonably
and in good faith believed by it to be genuine and correct and to have been signed or sent by such person. The Collateral Agent shall have
no duty to inquire as to the performance or observance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of any of the Senior Indebtedness
Documents. Except upon the direction of the Required Creditors pursuant to Section 2(b) of this Agreement, the Collateral Agent shall
not be required to inspect the properties or books and records of any Grantor for any purpose, including to determine compliance by any
Grantor with its covenants respecting the perfection of security interests.

3.
Lien Priorities . The parties to this Agreement expressly agree that the security interests and liens granted to
the Collateral Agent shall secure the Obligations on a pari passu basis for the benefit of the Creditors and that, notwithstanding the
relative priority or the time of grant, creation, attachment or perfection under applicable law of any security interests and liens, if any, of
the Creditors upon or in any of the Collateral to secure any Obligations, whether such security interests and liens are now existing or
hereafter acquired or arising and whether such security interests and liens are in or upon now existing or hereafter arising Collateral,
such security interests and liens shall be first and prior security interests and liens (subject to security interests and liens permitted by
the Senior Indebtedness Documents) in favor of the Collateral Agent to secure all of the Obligations on a pari passu basis for the benefit
of the Creditors.
4.
Certain Notices. Each of the Collateral Agent and each Creditor agrees to use its best efforts to give to the
others (a) copies of any notice of the occurrence or existence of an Event of Default sent to any Grantor, simultaneously with the
sending of such notice to such Grantor, (b) notice of the occurrence or existence of an Event of Default of which such party has
knowledge, promptly after obtaining knowledge thereof, (c) notice of the refusal of any Bank to make any loan or extension of credit
pursuant to the terms of any Senior Indebtedness Document, promptly after such refusal, and (d) notice of an Enforcement by such
party
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(excluding an Enforcement approved by the Required Creditors as required by this Agreement), prior to commencing such
Enforcement, but the failure to give any of the foregoing notices shall not affect the validity of such notice of an Event of Default given
to a Grantor or create a cause of action against or cause a forfeiture of any rights of the party failing to give such notice or create any

claim or right on behalf of any third party. The Collateral Agent agrees to deliver to each Creditor a copy of each notice or other
communication received by it under any Collateral Document as soon as practicable after receipt of such notice or communication and a
copy of any Collateral Document executed after the date of this Agreement as soon as practicable after the execution thereof.

5.

Distribution of Proceeds of Collateral and Payments and Collections After Enforcement .

(a)
On and after the occurrence of an Event of Default (unless such Event of Default has been waived pursuant to
the terms of the Bank Credit Agreement with the consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding principal amount of the Senior
Notes (in the case of an Event of Default under the Bank Credit Agreement) or waived pursuant to the terms of the applicable Note
Purchase Agreement with the consent of the Required Lenders as defined in the Bank Credit Agreement (in the case of an Event of
Default under a Note Purchase Agreement)), all proceeds of Collateral held or received by the Collateral Agent or any Creditor and any

other collections or payments received, directly or indirectly, by the Collateral Agent or any Creditor on or with respect to any
Obligations (including, without limitation, any amount of any balances held by the Collateral Agent or any Creditor for the account of
any Grantor or any other property held or owing by it to or for the credit or for the account of any Grantor setoff or appropriated by it,
any payment under any guaranty constituting a Senior Indebtedness Document, any payment in an insolvency or reorganization
proceeding and the proceeds from any sale of any Obligations or any interest therein to any Grantor or any Affiliate of any Grantor, but
excluding, except as otherwise provided in paragraph (b) of this Section 5, amounts on deposit in the Special Cash Collateral Account
provided for in paragraph (b) of this Section 5) shall be delivered to the Collateral Agent and distributed as follows:
(i)

First, to the Collateral Agent in the amount of any unpaid Collateral Agent Expenses;

(ii)

Next, to the extent proceeds remain, to the Creditors in the amount of any unreimbursed amounts paid

by the Creditors to any Indemnitee pursuant to Section 2(j) of this Agreement, pro rata in proportion to the respective
unreimbursed amounts thereof paid by each Creditor; and

(iii) Next, to the extent proceeds remain, to each Creditor an amount equal to its Obligation Share of such
proceeds in respect of Obligations owing to it under the Senior Indebtedness Documents.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to any collections or payments received by any Creditor on or after the
occurrence of an Event of Default but prior to the date of the occurrence of an Enforcement, (1) such collections and payments shall
be subject to the distribution provisions of clauses (i) through (iii), above, only to the extent that the principal
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amount of the Obligations owed to such Creditor on the date of such Enforcement is less than the principal amount of the Obligations
owed to such Creditor on the date of such Event of Default, and (2) the amount of any such collections and payments subject to the
distribution provisions of clause (i) through (iii) above, in accordance with clause (1) shall not be so distributed until the date of the
occurrence of such Enforcement. For the purposes of the preceding sentence, any collection or payment received by the Bank Agent
on behalf of the Banks shall be considered to have been received by the Banks, and applied to pay the Obligations owed to the Banks, to
which such payment or collection relates whether or not distributed by the Bank Agent to the Banks.
After the Obligations have been finally paid in full in cash, the balance of proceeds of the Collateral, if any, shall be paid to
any Grantor or as otherwise required by law.

(b)
Any payment pursuant to clause (a)(iii) above with respect to undrawn amounts of outstanding Letters of Credit
shall be paid to the Collateral Agent for deposit in an account (the “ Special Cash Collateral Account” ) to be held as collateral for the
Obligations and disposed of as provided herein. On each date after the occurrence of an Enforcement on which a payment is made to a
beneficiary pursuant to a draw on a Letter of Credit, the Collateral Agent shall distribute from the Special Cash Collateral Account for
application to the payment of the reimbursement obligation due to the Banks with respect to such draw an amount equal to the product of
(1) the amount then on deposit in the Special Cash Collateral Account, and (2) a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of such
draw and the denominator of which is the aggregate undrawn amount of all outstanding Letters of Credit immediately prior to such draw.
On each date after the occurrence of an Enforcement on which a reduction in the undrawn amount of any outstanding Letter of Credit
occurs other than on account of a payment made to a beneficiary pursuant to a draw on a Letter of Credit, then the Collateral Agent shall
distribute from the Special Cash Collateral Account an amount equal to the product of (1) the amount then on deposit in the Special
Cash Collateral Account and (2) a fraction the numerator of which is the amount of such reduction and the denominator of which is the
aggregate undrawn amount of all outstanding Letters of Credit immediately prior to such reduction, which amount shall be distributed as
provided in clauses (a)(i) through (iii) above. At such time as the undrawn amount of outstanding Letters of Credit is reduced to zero, any
amount remaining in the Special Cash Collateral Account, after the distribution therefrom as provided above, shall be distributed as
provided in clauses (a)(i) through (iii) above.
(c)

Any re-allocations of any payments or distributions initially made or received on any Obligations due to payments

and transfers among the Creditors and the Collateral Agent under this Section 5 shall be deemed to reduce the Obligations of any
Creditor receiving any such payment or other transfer under this Section 5 and shall be deemed to restore and reinstate the Obligations
of any Creditor making any such payment or other transfer under this Section 5, in each case by the amount of such payment and other
transfer; provided that if for any reason such restoration and reinstatement shall not be binding against the Company or any other
Grantor, then the Creditors and the Collateral Agent agree to take such actions as shall have the effect of placing them in the same
relative positions as they would have been if such restoration and reinstatement had been binding against the Company and the other
Grantors.
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6.
Certain Credit Extensions and Amendments to Agreements by the Creditors; Actions Related to
Collateral; Other Liens, Security Interests and Guaranties .
(a)
The Bank Agent, on its behalf and on behalf of the Banks, agrees that, without the prior written consent of
Noteholders holding a majority of the outstanding principal amount of the Senior Notes, it will not (i) amend, modify, supplement or
restate, or waive (A) any Specified Provision if the effect of such amendment, modification, supplement, restatement, or waiver causes
any Specified Provision to become more restrictive with respect to the Company or any subsidiary thereof or (B) any other provision of
the Bank Credit Agreement or any agreement, document or instrument delivered in connection therewith, if any Grantor makes any
payment or gives any other financial accommodation (other than reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses and customary amendment
fees) in connection therewith, (ii) except for any guarantees securing all of the Obligations constituting Senior Indebtedness
Documents, retain or obtain the primary or secondary obligations of any other obligor or obligors with respect to all or any part of the
Obligations evidenced by the Bank Credit Agreement and the agreements, documents and instruments delivered in connection
therewith or (iii) from and after the institution of any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding involving any Grantor, as respects the
Collateral enter into any agreement with any Grantor with respect to post-petition usage of cash collateral, post-petition financing
arrangements or adequate protection.
(b)
Each Noteholder agrees that, without the prior written consent of Banks holding a majority of the outstanding
principal amount of Obligations under and undrawn commitments to extend credit under the Bank Credit Agreement, it will not
(i) amend, modify, supplement, restate, or waive (A) any Specified Provision if the effect of such amendment, modification,
supplement, restatement or waiver causes any Specified Provision to become more restrictive with respect to the Company or any
subsidiary of the Company or (B) any other provision of a Note Purchase Agreement or Senior Notes if any Grantor makes any payment
or gives any other financial accommodation (other than reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses and customary amendment fees) in
connection therewith, (ii) except for any guarantees securing all of the Obligations constituting Senior Indebtedness Documents, retain
or obtain the primary or secondary obligations of any other obligor or obligors with respect to all or any part of the Obligations evidenced
by a Note Purchase Agreement and the Senior Notes or (iii) from and after the institution of any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding
involving any Grantor, as respects the Collateral enter into any agreement with any Grantor with respect to post-petition usage of cash
collateral, post-petition financing arrangements or adequate protection.

(c)
Each Creditor agrees that it will have recourse to the Collateral only through the Collateral Agent, that it shall
have no independent recourse to the Collateral and that it shall refrain from exercising any rights or remedies under the Collateral
Documents which have or may have arisen or which may arise as a result of an Event of Default or an acceleration of the maturities of
the Obligations, except that, upon the direction of the Required Creditors, any Creditor may set off any amount of any balances held by
it for the account of any Grantor or any other property held or owing by it to or for the credit or for the account of any Grantor, provided
that the amount set off is delivered to the Collateral Agent for application pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement. Without such
direction, no Creditor shall set off any such amount. For the purposes of determining whether such direction to setoff has been given,
any Creditor which has not voted in favor of or against such setoff within three business days of receiving

Exh. A-13

Exhibit 10.2
notice from another Creditor of its intent to setoff will be deemed to have voted in favor of such setoff. For the purposes of perfection
any setoff rights which may be available under applicable law, any balances held by the Collateral Agent or any Creditor for the account
of any Grantor or any other property held or owing by the Collateral Agent or any Creditor to or for the credit or account of any Grantor
shall be deemed to be held as agent for all Creditors.
(d)
No Creditor shall take or receive a security interest in or a lien upon any of the property or assets of any Grantor
as security for the payment of any Obligations other than liens and security interests granted to the Collateral Agent in the Collateral
pursuant to the Collateral Documents. The existence of a common law lien on deposit accounts shall not be prohibited by the provisions
of this paragraph (d) provided that any realization on such lien and the application of the proceeds thereof shall be subject to the provisions
of this Agreement.

(e)
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall (i) prevent any Creditor from imposing a default rate of interest in
accordance with any Senior Indebtedness Document or prevent a Creditor from raising any defenses in any action in which it has been
made a party defendant or has been joined as a third party, except that the Collateral Agent may direct and control any defense directly
relating to the Collateral or any one or more of the Collateral Documents as directed by the Required Creditors, which shall be governed
by the provisions of this Agreement, or (ii) affect or impair the right any Creditor may have under the terms and conditions governing

the Obligations to accelerate and demand repayment of such Obligations. Subject only to the express limitations set forth in this
Agreement, each Creditor retains the right to freely exercise its rights and remedies as a general creditor of the Grantors in accordance
with applicable law and agreements with the Grantors, including without limitation the right to file a lawsuit and obtain a judgment
therein against the Grantors and to enforce such judgment against any assets of the Grantors other than the Collateral.

(e)
Subject to the provisions set forth in this Agreement, each Creditor and its affiliates may (without having to
account therefor to any Creditor) own, sell, acquire and hold equity and debt securities of the Grantors and lend money to and generally
engage in any kind of business with the Grantors (as if, in the case of U.S. Bank National Association, it was not acting as Collateral
Agent), and, subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Creditors and their affiliates may accept dividends, interest, principal
payments, fees and other consideration from the Grantors for services in connection with this Agreement or otherwise without having
to account for the same to the other Creditors, provided that any such amounts which constitute Obligations are provided for in the
applicable Senior Indebtedness Documents.

7.

Accounting; Adjustments .

(a)
The Collateral Agent and each Creditor agrees to render an accounting to any of the others of the amounts of the
outstanding Obligations, receipts of payments from the Grantors or from the Collateral and of other items relevant to the provisions of
this Agreement upon the reasonable request from one of the others as soon as reasonably practicable after such request, giving effect to
the application of payments and collections as hereinbefore provided in this Agreement.
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(b)
Each party hereto agrees that to the extent any payment of any Obligations made to it hereunder is in excess of
the amount due to be paid to it hereunder, or in the event any payment of any Obligations made to any party hereto is subsequently
invalidated, declared fraudulent or preferential, set aside or required to be paid to a trustee, receiver, or any other party under any
bankruptcy act, state or federal law, common law or equitable cause (“ Avoided Payments”), then it shall pay to the other parties hereto
(or in the case of Avoided Payments the other parties shall pay to it) such amounts so that, after giving effect to the payments hereunder
by all parties, the amounts received by all parties are not in excess of the amounts to be paid to them hereunder as though any payment
so invalidated, declared to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside or required to be repaid had not been made.

8.
Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, any notice required or desired to be served, given or
delivered hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to have been validly served, given or delivered three (3) business days after
deposit in the United States mails, with proper postage prepaid, one business day after delivery to a courier for next day delivery, upon
delivery by courier or upon transmission by telecopy or similar electronic medium (provided that a copy of any such notice sent by such
transmission is also sent by one of the other means provided hereunder within one day after the date sent by such transmission) to the
addresses set forth below the signatures hereto, with a copy to any person or persons set forth below such signature shown as to receive
a copy, or to such other address as any party designates to the others in the manner herein prescribed. Any party giving notice to any
other party hereunder shall also give copies of such notice to all other parties. Any notice delivered to the Bank Agent shall be deemed to
be delivered to all of the Banks.
9.

Contesting Liens or Security Interests; No Partitioning or Marshaling of Collateral; Contesting

Obligations .

(a)
No Creditor shall contest the validity, perfection, priority or enforceability of or seek to avoid, have declared
fraudulent or have put aside any lien or security interest granted to the Collateral Agent and each party hereby agrees to cooperate in the
defense of any action contesting the validity, perfection, priority or enforceability of such liens or security interests. Each party shall
also use its best efforts to notify the other parties of any change in the location of any of the Collateral or the business operations of any
Grantor or of any change in law which would make it necessary or advisable to file additional financing statements in another location as
against any Grantor with respect to the liens and security interests intended to be created by the Collateral Documents, but the failure to
do so shall not create a cause of action against the party failing to give such notice or create any claim or right on behalf of any other party
to this Agreement and any third party.
(b)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or in any Collateral Document, no Creditor shall
have the right to have any of the Collateral, or any security interest or other property being held as security for all or any part of the
Obligations by the Collateral Agent, partitioned, or to file a complaint or institute any proceeding at law or in equity to have any of the
Collateral or any such security interest or other property partitioned, each Creditor hereby waives any such right. The Collateral Agent
and each Creditor hereby waive any and all rights to have the Collateral, or any part thereof, marshaled upon any foreclosure of any of
the liens or security interests securing the Obligations.
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(c)
Neither the Collateral Agent nor any Creditor shall contest the validity or enforceability of or seek to avoid, have
declared fraudulent or have set aside any Obligations (including, without limitation, any guaranty thereof). In the event any Obligations
are invalidated, avoided, declared fraudulent or set aside for the benefit of any Grantor, the Collateral Agent and the Creditors agree that
such Obligations shall nevertheless be considered to be outstanding for all purposes of this Agreement.

10.
No Additional Rights for Grantors Hereunder . Each Grantor, by its consent hereto, acknowledges that
it shall have no rights under this Agreement. If the Collateral Agent or any Creditor shall violate the terms of this Agreement, each
Grantor agrees, by its consent hereto, that it shall not use such violation as a defense to any enforcement by any such party against such
Grantor nor assert such violation as a counterclaim or basis for setoff or recoupment against any such party.

11.
Bankruptcy Proceedings . Nothing contained herein shall limit or restrict the independent right of any
Creditor to initiate an action or actions in any bankruptcy, reorganization, compromise, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt,
dissolution or liquidation or similar proceeding in its individual capacity and to appear or be heard on any matter before the bankruptcy or
other applicable court in any such proceeding, including, without limitation, with respect to any question concerning the post-petition
usage of Collateral and post-petition financing arrangements, provided such initiating Creditor provides all other Creditors prior notice of
the initiation of any such action. The Collateral Agent is not entitled to initiate such actions on behalf of any Creditor or to appear and be
heard on any matter before the bankruptcy or other applicable court in any such proceeding as the representative of any Creditor. The
Collateral Agent is not authorized in any such proceeding to enter into any agreement for, or give any authorization or consent with
respect to, the post-petition usage of Collateral, unless such agreement, authorization or consent has been approved in writing by the
Required Creditors. This Agreement shall survive the commencement of any such bankruptcy, reorganization, compromise,
arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation or similar proceeding.

12.
Independent Credit Investigation . Neither the Collateral Agent nor any Creditor, nor any of its respective
directors, officers, agents or employees, shall be responsible to any of the others for the solvency or financial condition of any Grantor
or the ability of any Grantor to repay any of the Obligations, or for the value, sufficiency, existence or ownership of any of the
Collateral, the perfection or vesting of any lien or security interest, or the statements of any Grantor, oral or written, or for the validity,
sufficiency or enforceability of any of the Obligations, any Senior Indebtedness Document, any Collateral Documents, any document
or agreement executed or delivered in connection with or pursuant to any of the foregoing, or the liens or security interests granted by
the Grantors in connection therewith. Each of the Collateral Agent and each Creditor has entered into its respective financial agreements
with the Grantors based upon its own independent investigation, and makes no warranty or representation to the other, nor does it rely
upon any representation by any of the others, with respect to the matters identified or referred to in this Section.
13.

Supervision of Obligations . Except to the extent otherwise expressly provided herein, each Creditor shall

be entitled to manage, supervise, amend and modify
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(including, without limitation, an amendment to increase the amount of such Obligations or waive an Event of Default) the obligations
of the Grantors to it in accordance with applicable law and such Creditor’s practices in effect from time to time without regard to the
existence of any other Creditor.

14.
Turnover of Collateral. If any Creditor acquires custody, control or possession of any Collateral or any
proceeds thereof other than pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, such Creditor shall promptly cause such Collateral or the proceeds
of such Collateral to be delivered to or put in the custody, possession or control of the Collateral Agent for disposition and distribution in
accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of this Agreement. Until such time as such Creditor shall have complied with the provisions
of the immediately preceding sentence, such Creditor shall be deemed to hold such Collateral and the proceeds thereof in trust for the
parties entitled thereto under this Agreement.
15.

Options to Purchase.

(a)
After the occurrence of a Purchase Option Trigger Event (as defined below), each Bank shall have the option to
purchase all (but not less than all) of the outstanding Obligations owed to the Noteholders at a purchase price equal to 100% of the
amount of such Obligations on the date of purchase (including all interest thereon to the date of purchase), plus an amount equal to the
Yield-Maintenance Amount which would be payable under the applicable Note Purchase Agreement if the Senior Notes were prepaid
pursuant to the optional prepayment provisions of the applicable Note Purchase Agreement on such date of purchase.

(b)
After the occurrence of a Purchase Option Trigger Event, each Noteholder shall have the option to purchase all
(but not less than all) of the outstanding Obligations owed to the Banks at a purchase price equal to 100% of the amount thereof on the
date of purchase (including all interest thereon to the date of purchase).
(c)
Any Creditor desiring to exercise its option to purchase under this Section 15 may do so by giving notice to the
Creditors whose Obligations are to be purchased. The closing of the purchase and sale shall take place on the fifth business day after such
notice is given. At the closing, the buyer will pay the sellers the purchase price of the Obligations being purchased except that, with
respect to the purchase of exposures in respect of outstanding but undrawn Letters of Credit, the purchase shall be a risk participation
therein payable at the same time as the related Letters of Credit are drawn. Payment of such purchase price shall be made in the same
manner as specified in the applicable Senior Indebtedness Documents. Any notice of exercise of any such option to purchase shall be
irrevocable. In the event more than one notice of exercise of an option to purchase under this Section 15 is given, only the notice first
given shall be effective and the other notices given shall be ineffective.
(d)
For the purposes of this Section 15, a “Purchase Option Trigger Event” shall occur when (i) an Event of Default
has occurred and is continuing, (ii) any Creditor has notified the Collateral Agent and each other Creditor of its desire to direct the
Collateral Agent to take action hereunder, and (iii) within 60 days after the notice specified in clause (ii), the Required Creditors shall not
have authorized the Collateral Agent to take such action and the
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Creditor giving such notice shall not have withdrawn such notice by notice given to the Collateral Agent and the other Creditors.

16.
Amendment . This Agreement and the provisions hereof may be amended, modified or waived only by a
writing signed by the Collateral Agent, the Bank Agent, on its behalf and on behalf of the Banks, and each of the Noteholders.
17.
Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective
successors and assigns of each of the parties hereto, including subsequent holders of the Obligations and persons subsequently becoming
parties to the Senior Indebtedness Documents as Creditors; provided that (a) neither the Collateral Agent nor any Creditor shall assign or
transfer any interest in any Obligations or permit such person to become such a party to the applicable Senior Indebtedness Documents
unless such transfer or assignment is made subject to this Agreement and such transferee, assignee or person assumes the obligations of
the transferor or assignor or the obligations of a Creditor, as the case may be, hereunder from and after the time of such transfer or
assignment or the time such person becomes a party to the applicable Senior Indebtedness Documents, as the case may be, and (b) the
appointment of any replacement Collateral Agent shall be subject to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement.

18.
Limitation Relative to Other Agreements. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to impair (a) as
between the Noteholders and the Grantors, the rights of the Noteholders and the obligations of the Grantors under the Note Purchase
Agreements and the Senior Notes, or (b) as between the Bank Agent, the Banks and the Grantors, the rights of the Bank Agent and the
Banks and the obligations of the Grantors under the Bank Credit Agreement and the agreements, documents and instruments delivered
in connection therewith.
19.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts and by each party on a separate
counterpart, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and
the same instrument. In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart
signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. Any facsimile copy of a signature hereto shall have the same effect as the
original thereof.
20.
Governing Law . THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED AS TO VALIDITY,
INTERPRETATIONS, ENFORCEABILITY AND EFFECT BY THE INTERNAL LAWS (AS OPPOSED TO
CONFLICT OF LAWS PROVISIONS) OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.
21.
(i)

Confirmations and Agreements .
The Bank Agent confirms that the Banks have approved this Agreement as of the date hereof.

(ii)
Each party subject hereto agrees that it will not, and will use commercially reasonable efforts to cause its agents,
employees, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, and its representatives associated with or acting on its behalf (collectively, the
“Representatives ”), and its sub-contractors, if any, not to, directly or indirectly through a third-party intermediary, in
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connection with this Agreement and the transactions resulting herefrom, offer, pay, promise to pay, or authorize the giving of money or
anything of value to any Government Official (as defined below) for the purpose of inducing such Government Official to use his or her
influence or position with the government or instrumentality thereof to affect or influence any act or decision of such government or
instrumentality, in order to assist in obtaining or retaining business for, directing business to, or securing an improper advantage for such
party.
(b)
Each party subject hereto will, and will use commercially reasonable efforts to cause its Representatives and subcontractors, if any, to maintain books and records that accurately reflect any payment of money or thing of value to a Government
Official, directly or indirectly, in connection with any matter relating to this Agreement.

(c)
The term “Government Official” includes any employee, agent or representative of a non-US government, and
any non-US political party, party official or candidate. Government Official may also include royalty, non-US legislators,
representatives of non-US state-owned enterprises, employees of public international organizations (including but not limited to the
United Nations, International Monetary Fund, World Bank and other international agencies and organizations), and employees and
officers of foreign embassies or trade organizations having offices in the US, regardless of rank or position, and any individuals acting on
behalf of a Government Official.

(d)
On any date on which the Obligations or any other amounts need to be determined, the Collateral Agent shall use
the rate of exchange specified in Section 5.6 of the Bank Credit Agreement to determine the U.S. Dollar equivalent of any foreign
currency (if any) in which such Obligations or other amounts are denominated, and such U.S. Dollar equivalent shall be used for
purposes of determining that portion of the Obligations or such other amounts denominated in the applicable foreign currencies on such
date.

The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first written above.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
as Bank Agent and Collateral Agent

By:
Name:
Title:

Notice information:
800 Nicollet Mall
Mail Code BC-MN-HO3P
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Attention: Michael J. Staloch
Telephone: (612) 303-3050
Fax: (612) 303-2265
E-mail: Michael.Staloch@usbank.com

THE PRUDENTIAL INSURANCE COMPANY
OF AMERICA, as a Noteholder

By:
Vice President

Notice information:
The Prudential Insurance Company of America
c/o Prudential Capital Group
Two Prudential Plaza, Suite 5600
180 N. Stetson Avenue
Chicago, IL 60601
Attention: Managing Director
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GIBRALTAR LIFE INSURANCE CO., LTD.,
as a Noteholder

THE PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY, LTD., as a Noteholder
By: Prudential Investment Management
(Japan), Inc., as Investment Manager
By: Prudential Investment Management, Inc.,
as Sub-Adviser

By:

Vice President

Notice information:
Pruco Life Insurance Company
c/o Prudential Capital Group
Two Prudential Plaza, Suite 5600
180 N. Stetson Avenue
Chicago, IL 60601
Attention: Managing Director
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FORETHOUGHT LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY, as a Noteholder
RGA REINSURANCE COMPANY,
as a Noteholder

MTL INSURANCE COMPANY,
as a Noteholder

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE
COMPANY, as a Noteholder
By:

Prudential Private Placement Investors, L.P.
(as Investment Advisor)

By:

Prudential Private Placement Investors, Inc.
(as its General Partner)

By:
Vice President

Notice information:
Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity
Company
c/o Prudential Capital Group
Two Prudential Plaza, Suite 5600
180 N. Stetson Avenue
Chicago, IL 60601
Attention: Managing Director
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EXHIBIT A

LIST OF COLLATERAL DOCUMENTS
Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2011, made by Graco Inc.
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF AND CONSENT AND AGREEMENT
TO INTERCREDITOR AND COLLATERAL AGENCY AGREEMENT
Each of the undersigned, a Grantor described in the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement set forth above,
acknowledges and, to the extent required, consents to the terms and conditions of the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement.
Each of the undersigned Grantors does hereby further acknowledge and agree to its agreements under Sections 2(i), 5(c) and 10 of the
Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement and acknowledges and agrees that it is not a third-party beneficiary of, nor has any rights
under, the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement. Each of the undersigned confirms that the signatories to this
Acknowledgment of and Consent and Agreement to Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement constitute all of the Grantors in
existence as of the date hereof.
This Acknowledgment of and Consent and Agreement to Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement and any
amendment hereof may be executed in several counterparts and by each party on a separate counterpart, each of which, when so
executed and delivered, shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one of the same instrument. In proving this
Acknowledgment of and Consent and Agreement to Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement it shall not be necessary to produce
or account for more than one such counterpart signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought.
The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party below has caused this Acknowledgment of and Consent and Agreement to
Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer as of May 23, 2011.

GRACO INC.
GRACO HOLDINGS INC.
GRACO MINNESOTA INC.
GRACO OHIO INC.

By:
Name: James A. Graner
Title: CFO & Treasurer
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Exhibit B

FORM OF PLEDGE AGREEMENT

THIS PLEDGE AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement ”), dated as of May 23, 2011, is made and given by GRACO INC., a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Minnesota (the “ Pledgor”) to U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as
Collateral Agent (in such capacity, and together with any successors in such capacity, the “ Secured Party ”) for the banks (the “ Banks”)
from time to time party to the Credit Agreement defined below and the noteholders (the “ Noteholders ” and collectively with the
Banks, the “ Creditors”) from time to time holding notes issued under the Note Purchase Agreements defined below.

RECITALS
A.
Graco Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the “ Borrower ”), the Borrowing Subsidiaries from time to time party thereto, the
Banks (as named therein from time to time) and U.S. Bank National Association, as Agent, have entered into a Credit Agreement dated
as of May 23, 2011 (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “ Credit
Agreement ”) pursuant to which the Banks have agreed to extend to the Borrower certain credit accommodations, including loan and
letter of credit facilities.

B.
The Borrower and the Noteholders named in the Purchaser Schedule attached thereto have entered into a Note
Agreement dated as of March 11, 2011 (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time,
the “March 11, 2011 Note Purchase Agreement ”).
C.
It is contemplated that the Borrower will enter into a Note Agreement with one or more affiliates of The Prudential
Insurance Company of America as Noteholders named in the Purchaser Schedule attached thereto (as the same may be amended,
restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “ Additional Note Purchase Agreement ”, together with the March
2011 Note Agreement, the “Note Purchase Agreements ”, and together with the Credit Agreement and the agreements, documents and
instruments delivered in connection with any or all of the foregoing (as each may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time), the “ Senior Indebtedness Documents ”).

D.
The Agent, the Secured Party and the Noteholders have entered into an Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement
dated as of May 6, 2011 (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the
“Intercreditor Agreement ”), pursuant to which the Secured Party has been appointed Collateral Agent.
E.
The Pledgor is the owner of the stock or other ownership or membership interests (the “ Pledged Interests ”) described in
Schedule I hereto issued by the issuers named thereon. The Pledgor may own stock or other ownership or membership interests in such
issuers in excess of the percentage set forth on Schedule I, but the term “ Pledged Interests ” shall be limited to the percentage of stock
or other ownership or membership interest listed on Schedule I, and all assets described in Sections 2(b) and (c) hereof consistent
therewith.
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F.
It is a term and condition of the Senior Indebtedness Documents that Pledgor enter into this Agreement and grant the
security interests and pledges provided herein.
G.
The Pledgor finds it advantageous, desirable and in the best interests of the Pledgor to comply with the requirement that
this Agreement be executed and delivered to the Secured Party.
H.
The relative rights and priorities of the Creditors in respect of the Collateral (as defined below) are governed by the
Intercreditor Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and in order to induce the Creditors to continue to extend credit
accommodations to the Borrower, the Pledgor hereby agrees with the Secured Party for the benefit of the Secured Party (on behalf of
the Creditors) as follows:
Section 1.

Defined Terms . As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

“Collateral ” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 2.
“Event of Default ” shall have the meaning given to such term in the Intercreditor Agreement.
“Lien” shall mean any security interest, mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance, title retention agreement or analogous
instrument or device (including the interest of the lessors under capitalized leases), in, of or on any assets or properties of the Person
referred to.
“Permitted Lien ” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 4(a).
“Pledged Interests ” shall have the meaning given to such term in the Recitals.
“Secured Obligations ” shall mean all of the “Obligations” under and as defined in the Credit Agreement and all of the obligations
owing to the Noteholders under the Note Purchase Agreements, including, without limitation, all of the “Obligations” under and as
defined in the Intercreditor Agreement.
“Security Interest ” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 2.
(a)
Terms Defined in Uniform Commercial Code . All other terms used in this Agreement that are not specifically defined
herein or the definitions of which are not incorporated herein by reference shall have the meaning assigned to such terms in Article 9 of
the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in the State of Minnesota.
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(b)
Singular/Plural, Etc. Unless the context of this Agreement otherwise clearly requires, references to the plural include
the singular, the singular, the plural and “or” has the inclusive meaning represented by the phrase “and/or.” The words “include,”
“includes” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without limitation.” The words “hereof,” “herein,”
“hereunder,” and similar terms in this Agreement refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this
Agreement. References to Sections are references to Sections in this Agreement unless otherwise provided.

Section 2.
Pledge. As security for the payment and performance of all of the Secured Obligations, the Pledgor hereby
pledges to the Secured Party for the benefit of the Secured Party and the Creditors and grants to the Secured Party for the benefit of the
Secured Party and the Creditors a security interest (the “ Security Interest ”) in the following, including any securities account
containing a securities entitlement with respect to the following (the “ Collateral ”):

(a)
The Pledged Interests and the certificates representing the Pledged Interests, and all dividends, cash, instruments and
other property from time to time received, receivable or otherwise distributed in respect of or in exchange for any or all of the Pledged
Interests.
(b)
All additional shares of stock or ownership or membership interests of any issuer of the Pledged Interests from time to
time acquired by the Pledgor in any manner in exchange for, as a dividend on, as a result of stock splits or combinations or otherwise in
connection with the initial Pledged Interests, and the certificates representing such additional shares of stock or ownership or
membership interests, and all dividends, cash, instruments and other property from time to time received, receivable or otherwise
distributed in respect of or in exchange for any or all of such shares of stock or ownership or membership interests.
(c)

All proceeds of any and all of the foregoing (including proceeds that constitute property of types described above).

Section 3.
Delivery of Collateral . All certificates and instruments representing or evidencing the Pledged Interests shall
be delivered to the Secured Party contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement. All certificates and instruments
representing or evidencing Collateral received by the Pledgor after the execution of this Agreement shall be delivered to the Secured
Party promptly upon the Pledgor’s receipt thereof. All such certificates and instruments shall be held by or on behalf of the Secured
Party pursuant hereto and shall be in suitable form for transfer by delivery, or shall be accompanied by duly executed instruments of
transfer or assignment in blank, all in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Secured Party. With respect to all Pledged
Interests consisting of uncertificated securities, book-entry securities or securities entitlements, the Pledgor shall either (a) execute and
deliver, and cause any necessary issuers or securities intermediaries to execute and deliver, control agreements in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to the Secured Party covering such Pledged Interests, or (b) cause such Pledged Interests to be transferred into
the name of the Secured Party. The Secured Party shall have the right at any time, when an Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing, to cause any or all of the Collateral to be transferred of record into the name of the Secured Party or its nominee for the
benefit of the Creditors (but subject to the rights of the Pledgor under Section 6) and to exchange certificates representing or evidencing
Collateral for certificates of smaller or larger denominations. If the Collateral is in the possession of a bailee,

Exh. B-3

Exhibit 10.2
the Pledgor will join with the Secured Party in notifying the bailee of the interest of the Secured Party and in obtaining from the bailee
an acknowledgment that it hold the Collateral for the benefit of the Secured Party.
Section 4.

Certain Warranties and Covenants . The Pledgor makes the following warranties and covenants:

(a)
The Pledgor has title to the Pledged Interests and will have title to each other item of Collateral hereafter acquired, free of
all Liens except the Security Interest and liens permitted by the Senior Indebtedness Documents or that arise by operation of law (
“Permitted Liens ”). As of the date of this Agreement, the Pledgor is unaware of the existence of any such liens arising by operation of
law.
(b)
The Pledgor has full corporate power and authority to execute this Agreement, to perform the Pledgor’s obligations
hereunder and to subject the Collateral to the Security Interest created hereby.
(c)
No financing statement covering all or any part of the Collateral is on file in any public office (except for any financing
statements filed by the Secured Party or as permitted by the Intercreditor Agreement).
(d)
The Pledged Interests have been duly authorized and validly issued by the issuer thereof and are fully paid and nonassessable. The certificates representing the Pledged Interests are genuine.

(e)
The Pledged Interests constitute the percentage of the issued and outstanding member interests of the respective issuers
thereof indicated on Schedule I (if any such percentage is so indicated).
Section 5.
Further Assurances . The Pledgor agrees that at any time and from time to time, at the expense of the Pledgor,
the Pledgor will promptly execute and deliver all further instruments and documents, and take all further action that may be necessary
or that the Secured Party may reasonably request, in order to perfect and protect the Security Interest or to enable the Secured Party to
exercise and enforce its rights and remedies hereunder with respect to any Collateral (but any failure to request or assure that the
Pledgor execute and deliver such instruments or documents or to take such action shall not affect or impair the validity, sufficiency or
enforceability of this Agreement and the Security Interest, regardless of whether any such item was or was not executed and delivered
or action taken in a similar context or on a prior occasion).

Section 6.

Voting Rights; Dividends; Etc.

(a)
Subject to paragraph (d) of this Section 6, the Pledgor shall be entitled to exercise or refrain from exercising any and all
voting and other consensual rights pertaining to the Pledged Interests or any other stock or member interests that becomes part of the
Collateral or any part thereof for any purpose not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement or the other Senior Indebtedness
Documents.
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(b)
Subject to paragraph (e) of this Section 6 and Section 3 hereof, the Pledgor shall be entitled to receive, retain, and use in
any manner not prohibited by the Senior Indebtedness Documents any and all interest and dividends paid in respect of the Collateral.
(c)
The Secured Party shall execute and deliver (or cause to be executed and delivered) to the Pledgor all such proxies and
other instruments as the Pledgor may reasonably request for the purpose of enabling the Pledgor to exercise the voting and other rights
that it is entitled to exercise pursuant to Section 6(a) hereof and to receive the dividends and interest that it is authorized to receive and
retain pursuant to Section 6(b) hereof.

(d)
Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default, the Secured Party shall have the right in its
sole discretion, and the Pledgor shall execute and deliver all such proxies and other instruments as may be necessary or appropriate to
give effect to such right, to terminate all rights of the Pledgor to exercise or refrain from exercising the voting and other consensual
rights that it would otherwise be entitled to exercise pursuant to Section 6(a) hereof, and all such rights shall thereupon become vested
in the Secured Party who shall thereupon have the sole right to exercise or refrain from exercising such voting and other consensual
rights; provided, however, that the Secured Party shall not be deemed to possess or have control over any voting rights with respect to
any Collateral unless and until the Secured Party has given written notice to the Pledgor that any further exercise of such voting rights
by the Pledgor is prohibited and that the Secured Party and/or its assigns will henceforth exercise such voting rights; and provided,
further, that neither the registration of any item of Collateral in the Secured Party’s name nor the exercise of any voting rights with
respect thereto shall be deemed to constitute a retention by the Secured Party of any such Collateral in satisfaction of the Secured
Obligations or any part thereof.

(e)
Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default following written notice from the Secured
Party to the Pledgor of revocation of the Pledgor’s rights under Section 6(b) hereof (provided that no such notice shall be required in the
case of an Event of Default under Section 10.1(e) or (f) of the Credit Agreement or Section 7A(viii), (ix) or (x) of the Note Purchase
Agreements):
(i)
all rights of the Pledgor to receive the dividends and interest that it would otherwise be authorized to receive and
retain pursuant to Section 6(b) hereof shall cease, and all such rights shall thereupon become vested in the Secured Party who
shall thereupon have the sole right to receive and hold such dividends as Collateral, and
(ii)
all payments of interest and dividends that are received by the Pledgor contrary to the provisions of paragraph (i) of
this Section 6(e) shall be received in trust for the benefit of the Secured Party, shall be segregated from other funds of the
Pledgor and shall be forthwith paid over to the Secured Party as Collateral in the same form as so received (with any necessary
endorsement).
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Section 7.

Transfers and Other Liens; Additional Member Interests.

(a)
Except as may be permitted by the Senior Indebtedness Documents, the Pledgor agrees that it will not (i) sell, assign (by
operation of law or otherwise) or otherwise dispose of, or grant any option with respect to, any of the Collateral, or (ii) create or permit to
exist any Lien, upon or with respect to any of the Collateral other than Permitted Liens to the extent that the holder thereof shall not be
seeking enforcement thereof in any way.
(b)
The Pledgor agrees that it will (i) cause each issuer of the Pledged Interests not to issue any additional stock or member
interests that would cause the percentage of all such stock or membership interest represented by the Pledged Interests to be less than
such percentage as of the date of this Agreement, and (ii) pledge hereunder, immediately upon its acquisition (directly or indirectly)
thereof, any and all additional shares of stock or member interests or other securities of each issuer of the Pledged Interests issued to or
received by the Pledgor, provided, that at no time shall the Pledged Interests be required to exceed, on a percentage basis, 65% of all
outstanding stock or membership interest of any issuer.
Section 8.
Secured Party Appointed Attorney-in-Fact . As additional security for the Secured Obligations, the Pledgor
hereby irrevocably appoints the Secured Party the Pledgor’s attorney-in-fact, with full authority in the place and stead of such Pledgor
and in the name of such Pledgor or otherwise, from time to time in the Secured Party’s good-faith discretion, to take any action and to
execute any instrument that the Secured Party may reasonably believe necessary or advisable to accomplish the purposes of this
Agreement (subject to the rights of the Pledgor under Section 6 hereof), in a manner consistent with the terms hereof, including,
without limitation, to receive, indorse and collect all instruments made payable to the Pledgor representing any dividend or other
distribution in respect of the Collateral or any part thereof and to give full discharge for the same.
Section 9.
Secured Party May Perform . The Pledgor hereby authorizes the Secured Party to file financing statements with
respect to the Collateral. The Pledgor irrevocably waives any right to notice of any such filing. If the Pledgor fails to perform any
agreement contained herein, the Secured Party may itself perform, or cause performance of, such agreement, and the reasonable
expenses of the Secured Party incurred in connection therewith shall be payable by the Pledgor under Section 13 hereof.
Section 10.
The Secured Party’s Duties . The powers conferred on the Secured Party hereunder are solely to protect its and
the Creditors’ interest in the Collateral and shall not impose any duty upon it to exercise any such powers. The Secured Party shall be
deemed to have exercised reasonable care in the safekeeping of any Collateral in its possession if such Collateral is accorded treatment
substantially equal to the safekeeping which the Secured Party accords its own property of like kind. Except for the safekeeping of any
Collateral in its possession and the accounting for monies and for other properties actually received by it hereunder, neither the Secured
Party nor any Creditor shall have any duty, as to any Collateral, as to ascertaining or taking action with respect to calls, conversions,
exchanges, maturities, tenders or other matters relative to any Collateral, whether or not the Secured Party or any
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Creditor has or is deemed to have knowledge of such matters, or as to the taking of any necessary steps to preserve rights against any
Persons or any other rights pertaining to any Collateral. The Secured Party will take action in the nature of exchanges, conversions,
redemption, tenders and the like requested in writing by the Pledgor with respect to any of the Collateral in the Secured Party’s
possession if the Secured Party in its reasonable judgment determines that such action will not impair the Security Interest or the value
of the Collateral, but a failure of the Secured Party to comply with any such request shall not of itself be deemed a failure to exercise
reasonable care.
Section 11.

Remedies upon Default . If any Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing:

(a)
The Secured Party may exercise in respect of the Collateral, in addition to other rights and remedies provided for herein or
otherwise available to it, all the rights and remedies of a secured party on default under Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code as
adopted in the State of Minnesota (the “ Code”) in effect at that time, and may, without notice except as specified below, sell the
Collateral or any part thereof in one or more parcels at public or private sale, at any exchange, broker’s board or at any of the Secured
Party’s offices or elsewhere, for cash, on credit or for future delivery, and upon such other terms as the Secured Party may reasonably
believe are commercially reasonable. The Secured Party agrees to give at least ten days’ prior notice to the Pledgor of the time and place
of any public sale or the time after which any private sale is to be made, and the Pledgor agrees that such notice shall constitute
reasonable notification. The Secured Party shall not be obligated to make any sale of Collateral regardless of notice of sale having been
given. The Secured Party may adjourn any public or private sale from time to time by announcement at the time and place fixed
therefor, and such sale may, without further notice, be made at the time and place to which it was so adjourned. The Pledgor hereby
waives all requirements of law, if any, relating to the marshalling of assets which would be applicable in connection with the
enforcement by the Secured Party of its remedies hereunder, absent this waiver. The Secured Party may disclaim warranties of title and
possession and the like.
(b)
The Secured Party may notify any Person obligated on any of the Collateral that the same has been assigned or transferred
to the Secured Party and that the same should be performed as requested by, or paid directly to, the Secured Party, as the case may be.
The Pledgor shall join in giving such notice, if the Secured Party so requests. The Secured Party may, in the Secured Party’s name or in
the Pledgor’s name, demand, sue for, collect or receive any money or property at any time payable or receivable on account of, or
securing, any such Collateral or grant any extension to, make any compromise or settlement with or otherwise agree to waive, modify,
amend or change the obligation of any such Person.

(c)
Any cash held by the Secured Party as Collateral and all cash proceeds received by the Secured Party in respect of any
sale of, collection from, or other realization upon all or any part of the Collateral may, in the discretion of the Secured Party, be held by
the Secured Party as collateral for, or then or at any time thereafter be applied in whole or in part by the
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Secured Party against, all or any part of the Secured Obligations (including any expenses of the Secured Party payable pursuant to
Section 13 hereof).
Section 12.
Waiver of Certain Claims. The Pledgor acknowledges that because of present or future circumstances, a
question may arise under the Securities Act of 1933, as from time to time amended (the “ Securities Act ”), with respect to any
disposition of the Collateral permitted hereunder. The Pledgor understands that compliance with the Securities Act may very strictly
limit the course of conduct of the Secured Party if the Secured Party were to attempt to dispose of all or any portion of the Collateral
and may also limit the extent to which or the manner in which any subsequent transferee of the Collateral or any portion thereof may
dispose of the same. There may be other legal restrictions or limitations affecting the Secured Party in any attempt to dispose of all or
any portion of the Collateral under the applicable Blue Sky or other securities laws or similar laws analogous in purpose or effect. The
Secured Party may be compelled to resort to one or more private sales to a restricted group of purchasers who will be obliged to agree,
among other things, to acquire such Collateral for their own account for investment only and not to engage in a distribution or resale
thereof. The Pledgor agrees that the Secured Party shall not incur any liability, and any liability of the Pledgor for any deficiency shall
not be impaired, as a result of the sale of the Collateral or any portion thereof at any such private sale in a manner that the Secured Party
reasonably believes is commercially reasonable (within the meaning of Section 9-627 of the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in
the State of Minnesota). The Pledgor hereby waives any claims against the Secured Party arising by reason of the fact that the price at
which the Collateral may have been sold at such sale was less than the price that might have been obtained at a public sale or was less
than the aggregate amount of the Secured Obligations, even if the Secured Party shall accept the first offer received and does not offer
any portion of the Collateral to more than one possible purchaser. The Pledgor further agrees that the Secured Party has no obligation to
delay sale of any Collateral for the period of time necessary to permit the issuer of such Collateral to qualify or register such Collateral
for public sale under the Securities Act, applicable Blue Sky laws and other applicable state and federal securities laws, even if said
issuer would agree to do so. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the provisions of this Section would apply if, for example,
the Secured Party were to place all or any portion of the Collateral for private placement by an investment banking firm, or if such
investment banking firm purchased all or any portion of the Collateral for its own account, or if the Secured Party placed all or any
portion of the Collateral privately with a purchaser or purchasers.

Section 13.
Costs and Expenses; Indemnity . The Pledgor will pay or reimburse the Secured Party on demand for all
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including in each case all filing and recording fees and taxes and all reasonable fees and expenses of
counsel and of any experts and agents) incurred by the Secured Party in connection with the creation, perfection, protection,
satisfaction, foreclosure or enforcement of the Security Interest and the preparation, administration, continuance, amendment or
enforcement of this Agreement, and all such costs and expenses shall be part of the Secured Obligations secured by the Security
Interest. The Pledgor shall indemnify and hold the Secured Party and each Creditor harmless from and against any and all claims, losses
and liabilities (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) growing out of or resulting from this Agreement (including enforcement of this
Agreement) or the Secured Party’s actions pursuant hereto, except claims, losses or liabilities resulting from the Secured Party’s gross
negligence or willful misconduct as determined by a final judgment of a court of
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competent jurisdiction. Any liability of the Pledgor to indemnify and hold the Secured Party and each Creditor harmless pursuant to the
preceding sentence shall be part of the Secured Obligations secured by the Security Interest. The obligations of the Pledgor under this
Section shall survive any termination of this Agreement.
Section 14.
Waivers and Amendments; Remedies . This Agreement can be waived, modified, amended, terminated or
discharged, and the Security Interest can be released, only explicitly in a writing signed by the Secured Party and the Pledgor. A waiver
so signed shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. Mere delay or failure to act shall not preclude
the exercise or enforcement of any rights and remedies available to the Secured Party. All rights and remedies of the Secured Party shall
be cumulative and may be exercised singly in any order or sequence, or concurrently, at the Secured Party’s option, and the exercise or
enforcement of any such right or remedy shall neither be a condition to nor bar the exercise or enforcement of any other.

Section 15.
Notices. Any notice or other communication to any party in connection with this Agreement shall be sent as
provided in the Intercreditor Agreement.

Section 16.
Pledgor Acknowledgments . The Pledgor hereby acknowledges that (a) the Pledgor has been advised by
counsel in the negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement, (b) the Secured Party has no fiduciary relationship to the Pledgor,
the relationship being solely that of debtor and creditor, and (c) no joint venture exists between the Pledgor and the Secured Party.
Section 17.
Continuing Security Interest; Assignments under Credit Agreement . This Agreement shall create a
continuing security interest in the Collateral and shall (a) subject to release by the Secured Party as provided in Section 13.16 of the
Credit Agreement and Section 11V of the Note Purchase Agreements, remain in full force and effect until Termination Conditions (as
defined in and determined under the Credit Agreement) and conditions for termination under the Note Purchase Agreements exist,
(b) be binding upon the Pledgor, its successors and assigns, and (c) inure, together with the rights and remedies of the Secured Party
hereunder, to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the Secured Party and its successors and permitted transferees and assigns. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing clause (c), the Secured Party may assign or otherwise transfer all or any portion of its rights and
obligations under the Senior Indebtedness Documents to any other Person to the extent and in the manner provided in the Senior
Indebtedness Documents, and may similarly transfer all or any portion of its rights under this Agreement to such Persons.
Section 18.
Termination of Security Interest . At such time as Termination Conditions (as defined in and determined under
the Credit Agreement) and conditions for termination under the Note Purchase Agreements exist, the security interest granted hereby
shall terminate and all rights to the Collateral shall revert to the Pledgor. Upon any such termination, the Secured Party will return to
the Pledgor such of the Collateral as shall not have been sold or otherwise applied pursuant to the terms hereof and execute and deliver
to the Pledgor such documents as the Pledgor shall reasonably request to evidence such termination. Any reversion or return of the
Collateral upon termination of this Agreement and any instruments of transfer or termination shall be at the expense of the Pledgor and
shall be without warranty by, or recourse on, the
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Secured Party. As used in this Section, “Pledgor” includes any assigns of Pledgor, any Person holding a subordinate security interest in
any part of the Collateral or whoever else may be lawfully entitled to any part of the Collateral.
Section 19.
Governing Law and Construction . THE VALIDITY, CONSTRUCTION AND ENFORCEABILITY OF
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
THAT NO EFFECT SHALL BE GIVEN TO CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA, EXCEPT
TO THE EXTENT THAT THE VALIDITY OR PERFECTION OF THE SECURITY INTEREST HEREUNDER, OR
REMEDIES HEREUNDER, IN RESPECT OF ANY PARTICULAR COLLATERAL ARE MANDATORILY GOVERNED BY
THE LAWS OF A JURISDICTION OTHER THAN THE STATE OF MINNESOTA. Whenever possible, each provision of this
Agreement and any other statement, instrument or transaction contemplated hereby or relating hereto shall be interpreted in such
manner as to be effective and valid under such applicable law, but, if any provision of this Agreement or any other statement,
instrument or transaction contemplated hereby or relating hereto shall be held to be prohibited or invalid under such applicable law, such
provision shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or
the remaining provisions of this Agreement or any other statement, instrument or transaction contemplated hereby or relating hereto.
Section 20.
Consent to Jurisdiction . AT THE OPTION OF THE SECURED PARTY, THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE
ENFORCED IN ANY FEDERAL COURT OR MINNESOTA STATE COURT SITTING IN MINNEAPOLIS OR ST. PAUL,
MINNESOTA; AND THE PLEDGOR CONSENTS TO THE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF ANY SUCH COURT AND
WAIVES ANY ARGUMENT THAT VENUE IN SUCH FORUMS IS NOT CONVENIENT. IN THE EVENT THE PLEDGOR
COMMENCES ANY ACTION IN ANOTHER JURISDICTION OR VENUE UNDER ANY TORT OR CONTRACT THEORY
ARISING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM THE RELATIONSHIP CREATED BY THIS AGREEMENT, THE SECURED
PARTY AT ITS OPTION SHALL BE ENTITLED TO HAVE THE CASE TRANSFERRED TO ONE OF THE JURISDICTIONS
AND VENUES ABOVE-DESCRIBED, OR IF SUCH TRANSFER CANNOT BE ACCOMPLISHED UNDER APPLICABLE
LAW, TO HAVE SUCH CASE DISMISSED WITHOUT PREJUDICE.

Section 21.
Waiver of Jury Trial . EACH OF THE PLEDGOR AND THE SECURED PARTY, BY ITS
ACCEPTANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.
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Section 22.
Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so
executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same instrument.
Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement by facsimile or by e-mail transmission of a PDF or similar
copy shall be equally as effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this Agreement. Any party delivering an executed
counterpart signature page to this Agreement by facsimile or by e-mail transmission shall also deliver an original executed counterpart of
this Agreement, but the failure to deliver an original executed counterpart shall not affect the validity, enforceability or binding effect of
this Agreement.

Section 23.
General. All representations and warranties contained in this Agreement or in any other agreement between
the Pledgor and the Secured Party shall survive the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the creation and
payment of the Secured Obligations. The Pledgor waives notice of the acceptance of this Agreement by the Secured Party. Captions in
this Agreement are for reference and convenience only and shall not affect the interpretation or meaning of any provision of this
Agreement.
Section 24.
Collateral Agent . U.S. Bank National Association, in its capacity as Secured Party, has been appointed
collateral agent for the Creditors hereunder pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
to this Agreement that any authority conferred upon the Secured Party hereunder is subject to the terms of the delegation of authority
made by the Creditors to the Secured Party pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement, and that the Secured Party has agreed to act (and
any successor Secured Party shall act) as such hereunder only on the express conditions contained in such Section 2. Any successor
Secured Party appointed pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement shall be entitled to all the rights, interests and benefits of the Secured
Party hereunder. For the avoidance of doubt, each Pledgor hereby acknowledges and agrees that it is not a third-party beneficiary of, nor
has any rights under, the Intercreditor Agreement. If the Secured Party or any Creditor shall violate the terms of the Intercreditor
Agreement, each Pledgor agrees, by its execution and delivery hereof, that it shall not use such violation as a defense to any
enforcement by any such party against such Pledgor nor assert such violation as a counterclaim or basis for setoff or recoupment against
any such party. No such violation shall limit or impair the rights of the Secured Party or any Creditor hereunder.

(signature page follows)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Pledgor has caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered by its officer thereunto
duly authorized as of the date first above written.

PLEDGOR:
GRACO INC.

By:
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Address for Pledgor:

88 11th Avenue N.E.
Minneapolis, MN 55413
Attention: Timothy Stoffel, Corporate Tax Director
Telephone: (612) 623Fax: (612)

-

and

Attention: Karen Gallivan
Telephone: (612) 623-6604
Fax: (612) 623-6944
Accepted:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
Secured Party

By:
Title:

Address for Secured Party:
800 Nicollet Mall
Mail Code BC-MN-H03P
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Fax Number: (612) 303-2265
Signature page to Pledge Agreement
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SCHEDULE I
TO
PLEDGE AGREEMENT
GRACO INC.

PLEDGED INTERESTS
Issuer:

Graco K.K.

Jurisdiction of Organization:

Japan

Type of Interest:

Common Stock

Percentage Ownership:

65.00%

Certificate No(s).:

2B-001 through 2B-009; 3A-001 through 3A-008; 4A-001
through 4A-0034

Number of Units/Shares:

429,000

Issuer:

Graco Korea Inc.

Jurisdiction of Organization:

Korea

Type of Interest:

Common Stock

Percentage Ownership:

65.00%

Certificate No(s).:

10,000-1 through 10,000-8; 1000-01; 100-1 through 100-5

Number of Units/Shares:

81,500

Issuer:

Graco N.V.

Jurisdiction of Organization:

Belgium

Type of Interest:

Uncertificated Common Stock

Percentage Ownership:

65.00%

Certificate No(s).:

N/A

Number of Units/Shares:

655,301
Signature page to Pledge Agreement
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CERTIFICATION
I, Patrick J. McHale, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Graco Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:

July 27, 2011

/s/ Patrick J. McHale
Patrick J. McHale
President and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION
I, James A. Graner, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Graco Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:

July 27, 2011

/s/ James A. Graner
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 1350
Pursuant to Section 1350 of Title 18 of the United States Code, each of the undersigned certifies that this periodic report fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in this periodic report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Graco Inc.

Date:

July 27, 2011

/s/ Patrick J. McHale
Patrick J. McHale
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date:

July 27, 2011

/s/ James A. Graner
James A. Graner
Chief Financial Officer
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GRACO INC.
P.O. Box 1441
Minneapolis, MN
55440-1441
NYSE: GGG

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION:
James A. Graner (612) 623-6635

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, July 27, 2011

GRACO REPORTS SECOND QUARTER SALES AND EARNINGS
REVENUE GROWTH CONTINUES TO DRIVE STRONG BOTTOM-LINE RESULTS
MINNEAPOLIS, MN (July 27, 2011) - Graco Inc. (NYSE: GGG) today announced results for the quarter and six months ended July 1, 2011.

Summary
$ in millions except per share amounts

Twenty-six Weeks Ended

Thirteen Weeks Ended

Net Sales
Net Earnings
Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share

July 1,

June 25,

2011

2010

$

234.7
38.1

$

192.1
24.8

$

0.61

$

0.41

%
Change
22 %
53 %
49 %

$
$

July 1,

June 25,

2011

2010

452.3
75.4
1.22

$

356.8
45.4

$

0.74

%
Change
27 %
66 %
65 %



All segments and regions had strong revenue growth for the quarter and year-to-date.



The sales increase of 22 percent for the quarter included 4 percentage points from currency translation. Changes in translation rates increased net
earnings for the quarter by approximately $4 million and increased year-to-date earnings by approximately $5 million.



For both the quarter and year-to-date, gross margin rate was 3 percentage points higher than the rate for the comparable periods last year.



Return on sales for the quarter was 3 percentage points higher than the second quarter last year. Year-to-date return on sales was close to 4
percentage points higher than the comparable period last year.



Operating expenses for the quarter included $3 million related to the pending acquisition of ITW’s finishing businesses.

“Sales gains for the quarter were strong worldwide, reflecting improved economic conditions, successful new product launches and continued progress on
expanding our business outside of North America,” said Patrick J. McHale, President and Chief Executive Officer. “Gross margins and operating margins
were solid even as we drive additional investments to support our strategic growth initiatives in innovation, technology, business development and geographic
expansion.”

Consolidated Results
Sales for the quarter increased 22 percent (18 percent at consistent translation rates), including increases of 14 percent in the Americas, 32 percent in Europe
(21 percent at consistent translation rates) and 34 percent in Asia Pacific (27 percent at consistent translation rates). Year-to-date sales increased 27 percent (24
percent at consistent translation rates), with increases of 23 percent in the Americas, 30 percent in Europe (24 percent at consistent translation rates) and 35
percent in Asia Pacific (29 percent at consistent translation rates).

More …
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Gross profit margin, expressed as a percentage of sales, was 56 1/2 percent for the quarter, up 3 percentage points from the second quarter last year. Year-todate gross margin rate was 57 percent, also 3 percentage points higher than the rate for the comparable period last year. The favorable effects of higher volume,
translation, and selling price increases were offset somewhat by higher material costs for both the quarter and the year-to-date.
Total operating expenses increased $11 million for the quarter and $22 million year-to-date. Selling, marketing and distribution expenses increased $7 million
for the quarter and $15 million year-to-date, from translation, headcount increases (mostly in Europe and Asia Pacific) and higher marketing and promotion
expenses (mainly in Contractor segment). General and administrative expense for the quarter increased $4 million, including $3 million related to the pending
acquisition of ITW Finishing businesses.
The effective income tax rate of 32 percent for the quarter and 33 percent for the year-to-date is lower than the 35 percent rate for both the quarter and year-todate periods last year. The decrease is mainly due to the federal R&D credit included in the 2011 rate (the federal R&D credit was not available in 2010 until
the fourth quarter).

Segment Results
Certain measurements of segment operations are summarized below:

Twenty-six Weeks

Thirteen Weeks

Net sales (in millions)
Net sales percentage change from last year
Operating earnings as a percentage of net sales
2011
2010

Industrial

Contractor

Lubrication

$

$

$

129.3
29 %
35 %
29 %

80.7
9%
20 %
18 %

Industrial

38 %

252.1
28 %

16 %

36 %

10 %

30 %

24.7

$

Contractor

Lubrication

$

$

150.9
21 %
18 %
15 %

49.3
41 %

19 %
10 %

Industrial segment sales increased 29 percent for the quarter and 28 percent year-to-date, with more than 20 percent growth in all regions. Contractor segment
sales increased 9 percent for the quarter and 21 percent year-to-date, with gains for the quarter of 29 percent in Europe (17 percent at consistent translation
rates) and 23 percent in Asia Pacific (13 percent at consistent translation rates). Contractor sales for the quarter were flat in the Americas compared to the
second quarter of 2010, which included substantial stocking shipments of new products. Lubrication segment sales increased 38 percent for the quarter and
41 percent year-to-date, with increases of at least 30 percent in all regions.

Higher volume and leveraging of expenses led to improved operating earnings in all segments compared to last year, particularly in the Industrial and
Lubrication segments.
Outlook

“On a global basis we are seeing stable incoming order rates and expect market conditions in the second half of 2011 to be generally favorable, with the
exception of the U.S. housing and commercial construction markets, which continue to be challenging,” said Patrick J. McHale, President and Chief
Executive Officer. “We expect percentage growth trends in the second half of 2011 to be lower as comparisons to prior year become more difficult. We continue
to cooperate with the Federal Trade Commission staff to obtain regulatory approval to close the pending acquisition of ITW’s finishing businesses.”
More …
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
A forward-looking statement is any statement made in this earnings release and other reports that the Company files periodically with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, as well as in press releases, analyst briefings, conference calls and the Company’s Annual Report to shareholders, which reflects the
Company’s current thinking on the acquisition of the finishing businesses of ITW, market trends and the Company’s future financial performance at the time
it is made. All forecasts and projections are forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to update these statements in light of new
information or future events.

The Company desires to take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 by making cautionary
statements concerning any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the Company. The Company cannot give any assurance that the results
forecasted in any forward-looking statement will actually be achieved. Future results could differ materially from those expressed, due to the impact of changes
in various factors. These risk factors include, but are not limited to: economic conditions in the United States and other major world economies, currency
fluctuations, political instability, changes in laws and regulations, and changes in product demand. In addition, risk factors related to the Company’s pending
acquisition of the ITW finishing businesses include: whether and when the required regulatory approvals will be obtained, whether and when the closing
conditions will be satisfied and whether and when the transaction will close, the ability to close on committed financing on satisfactory terms, the amount of
debt that the Company will incur to complete the transaction, completion of purchase price valuation for acquired assets, whether and when the Company will
be able to realize the expected financial results and accretive effect of the transaction, how customers, competitors, suppliers and employees will react to the
transaction, and economic changes in global markets. Please refer to Item 1A of, and Exhibit 99 to, the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal
year 2010 (and most recent Form 10-Q) for a more comprehensive discussion of these and other risk factors. These reports are available on the Company’s
website at www.graco.com and the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website at www.sec.gov.

Conference Call

Graco management will hold a conference call, including slides via webcast, with analysts and institutional investors on Thursday, July 28, 2011, at 11:00
a.m. ET, to discuss Graco’s second quarter results.
A real-time Webcast of the conference call will be broadcast live over the Internet. Individuals wanting to listen and view slides can access the call at the
Company’s website at www.graco.com. Listeners should go to the website at least 15 minutes prior to the live conference call to install any necessary audio
software.
For those unable to listen to the live event, a replay will be available soon after the conference call at Graco’s website, or by telephone beginning at
approximately 2:00 p.m. ET on July 28, 2011, by dialing 800-406-7325, Conference ID #4454163, if calling within the U.S. or Canada. The dial-in number
for international participants is 303-590-3030, with the same Conference ID #. The replay by telephone will be available through August 2, 2011.

Graco Inc. supplies technology and expertise for the management of fluids in both industrial and commercial applications. It designs, manufactures and
markets systems and equipment to move, measure, control, dispense and spray fluid materials. A recognized leader in its specialties, Minneapolis-based
Graco serves customers around the world in the manufacturing, processing, construction and maintenance industries. For additional information about Graco
Inc., please visit us at www.graco.com.
More …
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GRACO INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Earnings (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net Sales
Cost of products sold
Gross Profit
Product development
Selling, marketing and distribution
General and administrative
Operating Earnings
Interest expense
Other expense, net
Earnings Before Income Taxes
Income taxes
Net Earnings

Net Earnings per Common Share
Basic
Diluted

Weighted Average Number of Shares
Basic
Diluted

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
$ 234,663
$ 192,088
102,217
90,168
132,446
101,920
10,354
9,472
39,582
32,647
24,255
20,592
58,255
39,209
1,732
1,041
324
(268)
56,199
38,436
18,100
13,600
$ 38,099
$ 24,836

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010
$ 452,342
$ 356,809
195,499
165,594
256,843
191,215
20,285
18,946
77,065
61,807
44,169
38,547
115,324
71,915
2,348
2,121

$

75,352

$

$
$

$
$

1.25
1.22

$
$

0.63
0.61

$
$

60,721
62,070

0.41
0.41

324

(107)

112,652

69,901
24,500
45,401

37,300

60,597
61,184

60,496
61,715

0.75
0.74

60,402
60,948

Segment Information (Unaudited)

Thirteen Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

Net Sales
Industrial
Contractor
Lubrication

Total
Operating Earnings
Industrial
Contractor
Lubrication
Unallocated corporate (expense)

Total

Twenty-six Weeks Ended
July 1,
June 25,
2011
2010

$ 129,304
80,702
24,657
$ 234,663

$ 100,461
73,782
17,845
$ 192,088

$

252,134
150,907
49,301
$ 452,342

$

$ 45,339
16,424
4,045
(7,553)
$ 58,255

$ 29,565

$

$

13,203

$

1,868
(5,427)
39,209

$

90,364
27,539
9,272
(11,851)
115,324

$

$

197,253
124,579
34,977
356,809
60,039
18,086
3,575
(9,785)
71,915

All figures are subject to audit and adjustment at the end of the fiscal year.

The consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Management’s Discussion and Analysis are available in our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q on our website at www.graco.com.

###

